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CohnReznick LLP 
cohnreznick.com 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

\Ve have audited the financial statements of the District of Columbia Housing Fi.nance Agency 
(the "Agency''), a component unit of the Government of the District of Columbia, as of and for 
the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Agency as of September 30, 2022 and 202 1, and the changes in its 
financial posi tion and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Uni ted States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America ("GAAS") and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obta ined is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities o_f Management for the Financial Statements 

The Agency's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantia l doubt about the Agency's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing S1andards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

V.le are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requi re that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 6 through 11 be presented to supplement the 
basic financ-ial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financia l 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
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We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Supplementary information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fornling an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements. The combining statements of net 
position, combining statements of revenues, expenses and change in net position, combining 
statements of cash flows, and schedules of cash/cash equivalents, investments and mortgage­
backed securities by fund (the "supplemental information") on pages 51 through 77 are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uni ted 
States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 29, 2022 on our consideration of the District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency's 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over fi nancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency's 
internal control over financ-ial reporting and compliance. 

Baltimore, Maryland 
December 29, 2022 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 (UNAUDITED) 

Our discussion and analysis of the District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency's financial 
performance provides an overview of the Agency's financial activities for the years ended 
September 30, 2022 and 2021. The financial statements, accompanying notes, and additional 
infonnation should be read in conjunction with the following discussion. 

o,•erview 

The District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency (the "Agency" or "DCHF A") was established 
in 1979 to stimulate and expand homeownership and rental housing opportunities for low- and 
moderate- income families in the District of Columbia (the "District"). The Agency primarily 
issues taxable and tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds to lower the financing costs for single 
family bomebuyers and multifamily developers acquiring, constructing, and rehabil itating rental 
housing in the District of Columbia. In addition, the Agency administers the issuance of 4% 
low-income housing tax credits on behalf of the District of Columbia Department of Housing 
and Community Development ("DHCD"), to achieve its affordable housing preservation, 
rehabilitation, and development objectives. The Agency is self-sustaining, and its budget, 
finances, procurement, and personnel system are independent of the District of Cotumbia 
Government. 

The Agency accounts for its financial activities using program revenues and funds, through 
housing revenue bonds financing and mortgage enhancement and lending programs, for its single 
family and multifamily Joan programs and its general operations. The Agency's General Fund is 
used to record the receipt of income not directly pledged for repayment of debt securities, to pay 
expenses related to the Agency's administrative functions and operations, including bond 
program administration, mortgage servicing, the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development ("HUD") Risk-Sharing insurance program and the McKinney Act loan 
program. The Agency's currently active bond programs include (i) single family mortgage 
revenue bonds, (ii) multifamily housing revenue bonds (conduit financing), (iii) multifamily 
development program bonds, for acquisition, construction, rehabilitation of single-family homes 
and multifamily residential rental projects, and refinancing of existing debt. In conjunction with 
the Agency's multifamily revenue bonds, developers may be entitled to 4% Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits under the Internal Revenue Code. 

The Agency also operates programs that include down payment and closing cost assistance, pre­
development loans, construction monitoring services, multifamily mortgage loan servicing and a 
wide range of other technical assistance services that are available to prospective homeowners, 
developers and to the Washington D.C. Metropolitan Area at large. 

These single family and multifamily programs funds are used to account for proceeds of bonds, 
notes, debentures or other financial indebtedness of the Agency issued under these programs, 
cash and investments held under the bond indenture revenue fund, debt service reserve fund, 
rebate fund, redemption fund and program subsidy fund, mortgage loans held pursuant to the 
bond indenture, and repayments and prepayments collected from mortgage loans originated 
under the bond indenture. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 (UNAUDITED) 

Financial Highlights for the Year Ended September 30, 2022, and Comparative Financial 
Highlights for the Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 

Significant Macroeconomic Factors and Program Updates 
Fiscal year 2022 brought significant changes to the macro-economic eoviromuent. As inflation in 
the United States rose substantially, the Federal Reserve raised interest rates in the second half of 
the fiscal year. This abrupt change in rates notably slowed down our single-family business. 
While rising interest rates also negatively impacted our multi-family business, there was a 
positive tailwind to the multi-family business from the DC Government as it continued to fund 
large amounts into the Housing Production Trust Fund (HPTF). The Agency often underwrites 
and finances the first trust on multi-family projects but partners on most affordable housing 
financing projects with the DC Government as the second trust provider through the HPTF. The 
DC Government over the last several years and again in fiscal year 2022 increased its financial 
commitment to affordable housing and specifically to the Housing Production Trust Fund. This 
strong funding of the HPTF increased private developer demand in the affordable housing sector. 
On the consumer side, Washington DC still experiences strong demand for affordable 
multifamily units. We expect this trend of higher local government support and strong consumer 
demand for affordable housing development and renovation in Washington DC to continue for 
the next several years as evidenced by our large multifamily long-term pipeline. We closed $273 
million in multifamily loans in fiscal year 2022 consistent with previous years volume ranges. 

Consistent with the overall market in the United States, the DCHFA single family first trust loan 
volume declined 46% to $59. I million from the previous year total of approximately $110 million. 
This decline is largely macro-economic related as higher interest rates increased monthly mortgage 
payments significantly for the same size loan, disrupted mortgage-backed security markets, limited 
homes for sale, and caused overall consumer caution contributing to reduced volume. Similarly, the 
Agency's self-funded down payment assistance loan volume dropped 48% from fiscal year 2021. 
Despite the conditions, the single-family business helped finance loans for several hundred families 
with most of those families being first-time home buyers with income below 80% of the area median 
income. 

In March 2017, DCHFA entered into a grant agreement with the DC DHCD as the sub-recipient 
in the administration of the Home Purchase Assistance Program ("HP AP") funded by a variety 
of sources to include the Community Development Block Grant ("CDBG") funds. DCHFA 
continued to be one of two program administrators for the HP AP program in fiscal year 2022 and 
has been selected for fiscal year 2023 as well. The Agency processed approximately 125 HPAP 
loans in fiscal year 2022 on behalf of the DC Government and DHCD. Accordingly, the Agency 
maintains a $5.0 million line of credit with Industrial Bank to serve as a facil ity to fund HPAP 
loans. The line is paid down upon receipt of re imbursements from DHCD typically monthly. As 
of September 30, 2022, the outstanding balance on the credit line totaled $2.8 million. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The accompanying financial statements include Statements of Net Position, Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position and Statements of Cash Flows. The Statements 
of Net Position show the financial position of the Agency and its programs as of the end of the 
reporting period, while the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position show 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 (UNAUDITED) 

the results of operations for the reporting period. The Statements of Cash Flows show sources 
and uses of cash in the operating, investing and financing activities of the Agency and its 
programs. 

Financial Statement Analysis 

The following information is an analysis of the Agency's financial statements for the year ended 
September 30, 2022, compared to the financial statements for the years ended September 30, 
2021, as restated, and 2020: 

Net Net 
2022 Change 202 11 as reshlfed ~ 2020 

CUrreut asse1s $ 131.462.165 -23.4% $ 171,586.105 60.3% $ I 07,009 ,880 
Non-current other assets 411.156,774 -1.1 % 415,724.688 21.3% 342,737.324 
Non-current copital assets 2.305.050 -3.7% 2.393 891 -6.4% 2.556.666 
Tow I as~ts 544 923,989 -7.6% Sll9,704 684 30.4% 452.103.870 

Current liabilities 104,213,809 -32.9% 155,196,966 36.2% I 13,951.935 
Non-current liabilities 276 187.S14 -1.0% 278.950 195 42.3% 195.997 098 
Total liabUitlts 380,401.623 -12.4% 434 147,161 40. t •/4 309.949 033 

Net pO$ition 
Net investment in capital assets 2,149J25 -U% 2 201 126 -13.9% 2 556 666 

Restricted tbr: 
Bond fund. co1lateral ::ind Risk Share Program 30,607 .8-09 6.5% 28,730.761 --4,1% 29.954,219 
[\foKinney Act Fund 9,624.933 5.1% 9, 156,761 3.2% 8,868,951 

Total Restr.Cted 40,232.742 6.2% 37,887.522 •2,4% 38.823.170 
Unrestricted 122,140,399 5.8% 115.468,875 14.4% 100,975,001 

Total Ntl Posldon 164,522.166 5.8% 155,557~23 9.3% 142.354,83 7 
Total Uabllities and Ne-r Position $ 544.923,989 -7.6% S 589.704,684 30.4% s 452.303,870 

O!lerating Results 

During fiscal year 2022, the Agency's combined net position increased by $8.9 
million, or 5.8%, which comprises operating income of $15.8 million from 
operations and a non- operating loss of $6.9 million due to a decrease in the 
unrealized fair value of mortgage-backed securities and other investments. 

Total assets declined $44.8 million or 7.6% partially attributable to payoffs on 
some of our multi-family and single-family loans and bonds. 

Fiscal year 2022 operating income of $15.8 million was 10.2% higher than fiscal 
year 2021 operating income of $14.4 million partially att1ibutable to higher 
transaction fees earned from the multifamily business which more than offset the 
drop in single family transaction fees. 

During fiscal year 2021 , combined operating revenues increased by $3.5 million 
or I 1.5% from fiscal year 2020. Part of the operating revenue increase was 
associated with our large volume of Single-Family DC Open Doors transactions 
in fiscal year 2021 that generated an extra $2.6 million in revenue from fiscal year 
2020. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 (UNAUDITED) 

Combined operating expenses in fiscal year 2022 vs fiscal year 2021 were up $.9 
million or 4.9% partially attributed to the expected post COVlD increases in 
personnel and related costs that rose 20. I%. 

Total operating expenses for the last three years have been consistently between $19.I million 
and $20.0 million. 

Nel Net 
2022 Change 2021 ~ as resr&red Cha nge 2020 

Oper~tin:, reve-oues 
Investment interest inoome $ 2,390,291 -5.1% $ 2,518.369 -29.8% $ 3,588,311 
Mortgage-backed security interest income 569,951 -19.6% 708,774 -3.3% 733,306 
Interest on mongage and construction loans 5,226,898 I.I~% 5,135.051 -30.9% 7)434)541 
Cons1ruetion and development ndmin fees 2,275,851 -26.7% 3,103,655 11 .6% 2,780,369 
Financing fee income 5,845,154 23.8% 4,721.625 ·26.3% 6,409.195 
Bond ad.ministration fee income 7,370,384 15.9% 6,357,252 58.4% 4,012,843 
McKinney Act intcresl revenue 295,733 -4.3% 308,979 7.o+/4 288,898 
Application and commitment fees 263,660 92.7'/4 136.197 --63,5o/o 374,964 
Other 11.582.765 II.I% 10421 010 139.4% 4,353.369 

Total o pe-rating revenues 35,820,693 7.2% 33,411.512 11.So/e 29,975,796 

Operating expenses 
General ::ind administrative 4,537,753 -25.4% 6,082.957 45.4% 4,183.650 
Pmonnel and related cos1s 7,172,594 20.1% 5,970,199 -11 .8% 6,770,659 
Interest expense 7,922,002 21.5% 6,519,759 -13.8% 7,562,164 
l)eprecia1l0n and amortization 336,970 •14.1% 392.272 1.5% 386.627 
Tnt«et fec:.'S and other expenses 29.043 .JiS.ll"/4 90668 -57.4% 212.601 

Total ope-rattng expe-nses 19,998.362 4,9+/4 19,055.855 .().Jo/, 19,115,701 
Oµ.!rat1ng In-come (loss) 15,822.331 10.2% 14z:l55,657 32.1% 10,860,095 

Noo-oper11ting (expenses) re\·e-ouf-$ (6,857.488) 494.8% (1,152.971} -899.Q+/, 144.299 

C:han.ge io Net position 8,964,843 -32.1% 13.Z02,686 20.0% 11,004.394 

Net position. beginning, of yta.r 1ss,ss,1s23 9.3% 142z:l54,837 8.4% 131,350,443 
Net position. end of year s 164,522,366 5.8% $ 155.557,523 9.3% s 142,354,837 

Debt Management 

Debt activity and mortgage revenue bonds issued for the years ended September 30, 2022, 2021 
and 2020 was as follows: 

2022 2021 2020 
Beginning balance $ 282,866,582 $ 199,58 1,486 $ 205,924,229 

New issuance/draws 47,789,334 99,662,617 656,000 
Redemptions/maturities i49,873,6322 il6,377,5212 {6,998.7432 

Ending balance $ 280,782,284 $ 282,866,582 $ 199,58 1,486 

The debt outstanding numbers represent DCHFA's risk share portfolio where it 
takes financial risk along with the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development in a portfolio of20 multifamily projects. 

The overall outstanding debt position decreased modestly in fiscal year 2022 from 
$282.9 million to $280.8 million partially due to slightly elevated $49.9 million 
volume of redemptions vs $ 16.4 million and $7.0 million the previous two years. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 (UNAUDITED) 

In March 2017, the Agency established a line of credit with Industrial Bank for 
the purpose of funding HP AP loans. As of September 30, 2022, the total 
outstanding balance on the Industrial credit line was $2.8 million. 

During fiscal year 2022, DCHFA financed 12 new multifamily projects for 
$272.6 million. 

During fiscal year 2021, DCHFA financed 11 new multifamily revenue projects 
for $245.4 million. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, were $2.3 million and $2.4 
million (as restated), respectively, as of September 30, 2022 and 2021. The detailed analysis of 
changes in capital assets is in Note 5. 

Key Bond Programs 

Multifamily Development Program ("MFDP") 
The Agency desired to implement a program that provides flexible financing options for loans 
made to finance housing projects through the issuance of bonds, notes, or other obligation by the 
Agency. In spring 2017, the Agency established a new multifamily bonds indenture to issue its 
multifamily mortgage revenue bonds, from time to time, for the purpose of (i) providing funds to 
finance, among other things, the acquisitions, construction, rehabilitation and equipping and/or 
permanent financing or refinancing of housing projects in the District of Columbia for 
occupancy by low- and moderate-income persons and (ii) refunding bonds previously issued by 
the Agency. The MFDP includes other indentures used prior to the 2017 indenture for the same 
purposes. 

Single Family New Issue Bond Program ("Single Family NlBP") 
Due to the executive management decision several years ago, the Agency changed its single­
family business model from bond financing to a purchase and sale of the mortgage-backed 
securities approach. These purchase and sale transactions are accounted for under the DCHFA 
General Fund and not under the Single-Family Program Funds. 

At the beginning of 2021, the agency had three outstanding single-family indentures 1988, 1996 
and 2009. During Fiscal Year 2022, the Agency consolidated the 1996 and 2009 indenture into 
the 1988 indenture to concentrate assets and reduce administrative costs. The Agency did not 
issue any new Mortgage Revenue Bonds in 2022 but is always analyzing that execution for 
possible financial benefits vs the existing strategy of leveraging the "To Be Announced"/MBS 
execution. The total bonds outstanding in the now consolidated SF indenture is $.6 million on 
September 30, 2022. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 (UNAUDITED) 

HUD Risk Sharing Program and Agency General Fund 

The Agency has two risk sharing agreements with HUD where HUD pays 100% of the amount 
needed to retire bonds issued in connection with a defaulted project at the time of the initial 
claim. Both agreements provide loss sharing in the event of default. The most recent program 
enhancement allows the Agency to share premiums and losses 50% between the Federal Housing 
Administration ("FHA") and the Agency whereas the older program splits premiums and losses 
benveen FHA at 90% and the Agency at 10%. Due to DCHFA's A+ S&P rating, HUD does not 
require that DCHF A hold reserves against our risk sharing portfolio of multifamily loans. The 
Agency has or will have permanent mortgages of approximately $226 million when all current 
projects complete construction. The risk share portfolio contains 12 projects with permanent 
mortgages of approximately $42 million which have I 0% risk share exposure to the Agency. The 
remaining eight projects totaling approximately $ 184 million in permanent mortgages or 
commitments of permanent mortgages when construction is complete have a 50% risk share 
exposure to the Agency. 

Conclusion 

Management's discussion and analysis is presented to provide additional information regarding 
the activities of the Agency and to meet the disclosure requirements of the Governmental 
Accow1ting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 34. If you have questions about the report 
or need additional financial information, contact the Chief Financial Officer, Stephen Clinton, 
District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency, (202) 777-1620, 815 Florida Avenue, N.W. 
Washington DC 20001 , sclinton(@,dchfa.org or go to our website at www.dchfa.org. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
ST A TEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Unrestricted current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Other receivables 
Accn1ed interest receivable 
Prepaid fees 

Total unrestricted current assets 
Restricted current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable - HPAP program 
Mortgage-backed securities at fair value 
McKinney Act loans receivable, net 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total restricted current assets 
TOT AL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Unrestricted non-current assets: 
Investments 
Mortgage and construction loans receivable, net 

Total unrestricted non-current assets 
Restricted non-current assets: 
Investments held in trust 
Investments in joint ventures 
Mortgage-backed securities at fair value 
Mortgage and construction loans receivable, net 
Loans receivable 
McKfoney Act loans receivable, net 

Total restricted non-current assets 
Capital assets: 
Land 
Property and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Total capital assets, net 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

TOT AL ASSETS 

(Continued) 

12 

$ 

$ 

2022 2021, as restated 

38, I 8 l,423 $ 32,358,729 
15,165,[42 15,782,837 
3,3 12,4 19 3,513,564 

567,220 669,159 
2 12,990 302,966 

57,439,194 52:627:255 

57,636,470 38,688,266 
11,035,000 74,415,000 
2,892,860 1,518,107 

10,262 
1,585,808 3,779,076 

872,833 548,139 
74,022,971 I 18,958,850 

13 1,462,165 17 1,586,105 

51,993,809 46,234,552 
6,078,723 4,949,448 

58,072,532 5 1, 184,000 

140,828,738 141,547,990 
1,345,435 98 1,668 

12,389,739 17,555,564 
196,796,048 202,632,697 

1,724,282 1,822,769 

353,084,242 364,540,688 

573,000 573,000 
6,586,553 7,114,734 

(4,854,503} (5,293,843} 
2,305:050 2,393,891 

413,461,824 418,118,579 
544,923,989 $ 589,704,684 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
ST A TEMENTS OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 2022 2021, as restated 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Cuneot liabilities payable from unrestricted assets: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 242,992 $ 1,8 I 7,683 
Accrued salary and vacation payable 558,674 608,591 
Lease liability 36,940 36,940 
Prepaid fees 5,460,680 3,336,106 

Total current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets 6,299,286 5,799,320 
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabil ities 105,204 183,325 
Project funds held for borrower and other liabi lities 92,257,734 144,513,4 54 
Interest payable 838,230 628,655 
Current portion of loan payable 2,780,425 2,582,887 
Current portion of bonds payable 1,932,930 1,489,325 

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets 97,914,523 149,397,646 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 104,213,809 155,196,966 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets: 
Lease liability 118,885 155,825 

Total non-current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets 118,885 155,825 
Non-current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Bonds payable - less current portion 276,068,929 278 794,370 

Total non-current liabilities payable from restricted assets 276,068,929 278,794,370 
Total non-current liabilities 276,187,814 278,950,195 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 380,401,623 434,147,16] 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capita l assets 2,149,225 2,201,126 
Restricted for: 

Bond Fund, collateral and Risk Share Program 30,607,809 28,730,761 
McKiru1ey Act Fund 9,624,933 9,156,761 

Total restricted net position 40)32,742 37,887,522 

Unrestricted net position 122,140,399 115,468,875 
TOTAL NET POSmON I 64,522,366 I 55,557,523 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 544,923,989 $ 589,704,684 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 2021, as restated 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Investment interest income $ 2,390,291 $ 2,518,369 
Mortgage-backed security interest income 569,957 708,774 
Interest on mortgage and construction loans 5,226,898 5,135,051 
Construction and development admin fees 2,275,85 I 3, I 03,655 
Financing fee income 5,845,154 4,721,625 
Bond administration fee income 7,370,384 6,357,252 
McKinney Act interest revenue 295,733 308,979 
Application and commitment fees 263,660 136,797 
Other 11,582,765 10,42 1,0 10 

Total operating revenues 35,820,693 33,411,512 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
General and administrative 4,537,753 6,082,957 
Personnel and related costs 7,172,594 5,970,199 
Interest expense 7,922,002 6,519,759 
Depreciation and amortization 336,970 392,272 
Trustee fees and other expenses 29,043 90668 

Total operating expenses 19,998,362 19,055,855 

OPERATING INCOME 15,822,331 14,355,657 

NON-OPERATING REVE UES/(EXPENSES) 
Federal and city programs: 

Program revenue 8, 125,894 9,369,420 
Program expenses (8,125,894) (9,369,420) 

Decrease in fair value of mortgage-backed 
securities and investments {6,857,488} {1,152,971} 

Total non-operating {expenses)/revenues {6,857,488) (1,152,971) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 8,964,843 13,202,686 

Net position, begiwling of year 155,557,523 142,354,837 
Net position, end of year $ 164,5222366 $ I 552557,523 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 2021, as restated 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Interest received on loans $ 5,173,438 $ 6,013,630 
Administrative and financing cash receipts 15,491,389 14,182,532 
Other cash receipts (33,457,009) 58,731 ,459 
Pa)~nents to vendors (12,101,89 1) (14,692,909) 
Payments to employees (7,222,51 1) (6,073,026) 
Net mortgage and construction loans principal receipts (disbursements) 6,999, 129 (33,540,847) 
Principal and interest received on mortgage-backed securities (870,371) 29,214,764 
Payment for the purchase of mortgage-backed securities (30,819,770) 
Other cash pa)ments (29,043) (90,668} 

et cash pro,1ded by (used in) operating activities (26,016,869) 22,925,165 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Acquisition of capital assets (248, 147) (23,883) 
Principal payments on lease from operations (36,940) (12,849} 

et cash used in capi tal and related financing activities (285,087) (36,732) 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities 
Interest paid on bonds and loans (7,712,427) (6,760,307) 
Proceeds from bond issuances and loans 47,743,776 99,662,6 17 
Principal payments on issued debt and loans (49,873,632) (16,377,521) 
Bond premium 45,558 

et cash pro,•ided by (used In) non-capital financing activities (9,796,725) 76,524,789 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Investment in joint ventures (363,767) (96,136) 
Interest received on investments 2,390,29 1 2,5 18,369 
Maturities and sales of investments 190,440,267 22,623,379 
Purchase of investments (131,597,212) (128,005,604} 
Net c.ash provided by (used in) investing acti,•ities 60,869,579 (102,959,992) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24,770,898 (3,546,770) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 71,046,995 74,593,765 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 95,817,893 $ 71,046,995 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,181,423 $ 32,358,729 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 57 636.470 38,688,266 

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 95,817,893 $ 71,046,995 

on-cash capital and related financing activities 
Lease Activity - Purchase of capital assets through lease $ $ 205,6 14 
Net non-cash provided by capital and related financing activities $ $ 205.6 14 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

2022 2021, as restated 
RecoocUiation ofOperatiog l ocome to Net Cash Provided by 
(Used in) Operating Activities 
Operating income $ 15,822,331 $ 14,355,657 
Depreciation and amortization 336,970 392,272 
Gain on disposal of assets 18 
Amortization of prepaid items, premiums and discounts on debt 235,908 
Interest on bonds/loans 7 ,712,427 6,571,810 
Provision for uncollectible interest revenue 31,339 31,339 
Decrease (increase) in mortgage and construction loans 6,999,129 (33,540,847) 
Decrease (increase) in mortgage-backed securities (1,566,766) 28,747,759 
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities (30,819,770) 
Interest received on investments (2,390,291) (2,518,369) 
Asset/(liabi lity) adjustment 
Decrease (increase) in assets: 

Accmed interest receivable (254,094) 296,492 
Other current assets 89,976 (187,213) 
Other receivables ( I, 173,608) (1 , 124,232) 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1 ,702,729) 1,304,872 
Prepaid items 2 ,124,574 (461,018) 
Project funds held for borrower and other liabilities (52,255,720) 39,928,464 
Accrued interest payable 209,575 {287,959) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (26,016,869) $ 22,925,165 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTE 1: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE 

The District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency (the "Agency" or "DCHFA") 
was created as a corporate body which has a legal existence separate from the 
Govenunent of the District of Columbia (the "District") but which is an 
instrumentality of the District, created to effectuate certain public purposes. The 
Agency is empowered to, among other activities, generate funds from public and 
private sources to increase the supply and lower the cost of funds available for 
residential mortgages and notes and for the construction of permanent multifamily 
rental properties. 

In 1991 , the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") issued 
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. The definition of tbe reporting 
entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability. In determining 
financ ial accountability for legally separate organizations, the Agency considered 
whether its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing 
body and the Agency is either able to impose its will on that organization or if 
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
to impose specific financial burdens on, the Agency. The Agency also considered 
whether there are organizations that are fiscally dependent on it. ft was 
determined that there are no component units of the Agency. 

These financial statements present only financial infonnation about the Agency, 
an enterprise fund of the District. The enterprise fund qualifies for inclusion in the 
District's reporting entity pursuant to GASB Statement No. 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units and GASB Statement No. 
61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. These financial statements do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the District and the 
changes in its financial position and cash flows, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Agency is 
included in the District's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report as a discretely 
presented component unit. 

The accompanying combined financial statements include DCHFA's General 
Fund and Revenue Obligation Funds: Single Family Program Funds and 
Multifamily Program Funds. Within each Revenue Obligation Fund are separate 
accounts maintained for each obligation in accordance with the respective 
indentures. 

The bonds and notes issued by the Agency are special obligations of the Agency 
payable principally from revenue and repayments of mortgage loans and 
mortgage-backed securities and investments, financed by or purchased from the 
proceeds of such bonds under applicable indentures and are not a debt of the 
District. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the District is pledged 
for the repayment of the bonds. 
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NOTE 1: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE (Continued) 

The General Fund credit line draw by the Agency is backed by the General Fund 
assets and constitutes the Agency's general obligation. 

The following is a description of the funds maintained by the Agency ("Funds"): 

General Fund - The General Fund is used to record the receipt and accrual of 
income not directly pledged for repayment of debt securities under the 
Revenue Obligation Funds, to pay expenses related to the Agency's 
administrative functions and operations, including mortgage servicing, HUD 
Risk-Share Insurance Program, McKinney Act Loan Program and purchase 
and sale of single family mortgage-backed securities. 

Single Family Program Funds - The Single Family Program Funds are used 
to account for the proceeds of single family mortgage revenue bond issues, 
investments, mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities held pursuant to 
the indentures authorizing the issuance of the bonds, the debt service 
requirements on the bonds, and debt service collected from mortgage Joans 
purchased for the financi ng of owner-occupied single family residences in the 
District. Single Family Program Funds include the following active bond 
programs: 1988 Collateralized Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 1996 
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds and 2009 Single Family New Issue 
Bond Program ("Single Family NIBP"). At the beginning of 2021, the Agency 
had three outstanding Single-Family indentures 1988, 1996 and 2009. During 
Fiscal Year 2022, the Agency consolidated the 1996 and 2009 indenture into 
the 1988 indenture to concentrate assets and reduce administrative costs. 

Multifamily Program Funds - The Multifamily Program Funds are used to 
account for proceeds of bonds, notes, debentures or other financial 
indebtedness of the Agency issued under the Multifamily Development 
Program Indenture ("MFDP") and smaller indentures under the multifamily 
HUD Risk-Share Insurance Program (the "Indentures"), cash and investments 
held under the Indentures revenue funds, debt service reserve funds, rebate 
funds, redemption funds and program subsidy funds, mortgage loans held 
pursuant to the Indentures, and repayments and prepayments collected from 
mortgage loans originated to finance multifamily residential rental facilities 
within the District for persons or famil ies of limited income. 
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NOTE2: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of the Agency's significant accounting policies: 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus - For financial reporting purposes 
only, the Agency is a component unit of the District. The Agency's General Fund 
and Revenue Obligation Funds are accounted for as enterprise funds. 
Accordingly, the accompanying combined financial statements have been 
prepared using the accrual method of accounting and on the basis of accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses - The Agency distinguishes operating 
revenues and expenses from non-operating items in conformity with GASB 
Statement No. 34. Operating revenues and expenses are identified as those 
activities that are directly related to financing affordable housing in the District. 
The Agency's activities are considered to be operating except for unrealized 
changes in the fair value of mortgage-backed securities. Operating revenues 
primarily consist of interest on mortgage-backed securities, interest on mortgage 
and constrnction Joans and investment of bond proceeds, issuer fees, construction 
monitoring fees, servicing fees and other revenues. Operating expenses primarily 
consist of bond interest, personnel costs, bond issuance costs, bond administrative 
fees, trustee, legal and financial advisory fees, depreciation and amortization of 
discounts and premiums and other operating expenses. 

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses - Non-operating revenue and expenses 
mainly consist of federal and city grant programs. Federal and city grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, 
collateralized demand deposits, collateralized or insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC-insured") certificates of deposit, money market 
funds and investments in highly liquid short-term instruments with original 
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. 
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NOTE2: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

SUMl\1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Investments - Investments consist of debt obligations of the U.S. Treasury and 
U.S. Government Agencies, government-sponsored enterprises ("GSEs"), 
corporate debt securities, and investment agreements. Investments are reported at 
fair value as detenuined by financial services providers, except for certain non­
participating fixed interest investment contracts which are valued using cost based 
measures. Debt securities are stated at fair value, based on the quoted market 
prices. Investments of the General Fund are made in accordance with the 
Agency's investment policy. Investments in the Revenue Obligation Funds follow 
the Agency investment policy and consist of those permitted by the respective 
trust indentures adopted by the Agency providing for the issuance of notes and 
bonds. Investments are reported at fair value in the Statements of Net Position and 
changes in the fair value of investments are recognized in the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position as part of operating income. 

Mortgage-Backed Securities - Mortgage-backed securities represent certificates 
issued by tbe Government National Mortgage Association ("Ginnie Mae" or 
"GNMA"), the Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae" or 
"FNMA") and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac" or 
"FHLMC"), which guarantee the receipt by the Agency's trustee of monthly 
principal and interest from mortgages originated with proceeds from the Agency's 
Single Family and Multifamily Programs. These securities are stated at fair value, 
as determined by financial services providers or financial publications. These 
guaranteed securities are issued in connection with single family mortgage loans 
and mortgage loans on multifamily projects. Each of these securities is generally 
intended to be held to maturity or optional par redemption date for the underlying 
bonds or until the payoff of the related loans. Tbe repayment and prepayments of 
the mortgage-backed securities are at par value based on the guarantees embedded 
in these securities. Mortgage-backed securities are reported at fair value on the 
Statements of Net Position and unrealized changes in the fair value of mortgage­
backed securities are recognized in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Change in Net Position as part of non-operating income. 

Mortgage and Construction Loans Receivable - Mortgage loans are carried at 
their unpaid principal balances, and constrnction loans are carried at amounts 
advanced, net of collections and allowances for potential loan losses. The 
Agency's allowance for doubtful accounts policy is to charge expenses for 
estimated probable losses which are established as an allowance for loan losses. 
The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb 
losses inherent in existing loans based on evaluations of collectability and prior 
loss experience as well as a competitive benchmarking study. 
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NOTE2: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

SUMl\1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment purchases are recorded in 
the General Fund, capitalized at cost and depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives in general ranging from 5 to 40 years. 

Bond Discounts and Premiums - Bond discounts or premiums arising from the 
sale of serial or term bonds are amortized using the straight-line method which 
approximates the effective yield method, over the life of the bond issue. 

Net Position - The Agency first applies restricted resources when an expense is 
incurred, for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is 
available. Net position is reported in three separate categories: 

• Net investment in capital assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation/amortization and outstanding principal balances of debt and 
lease liabilities attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted - Net position whose use by the Agency is subject to externally 
imposed stipulations (such as bond covenants, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments; or are imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation) that can be fulfilled by 
actions of the Agency pursuant to those stipulations or that expire with the 
passage of time. Such net assets include all Revenue Obligation Funds, 
HOME and DC Open Doors Program funds under the Single Family 
Program, certain holdings under the General Fund: the McKinney Act 
Program funds, HUD Risk-Share Reserve and assets used as collateral for 
the credit line draws or as warehouse securities for future bond issues. 

• Unrestricted - Net position that is not subject to externally imposed 
stipulations. Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific 
purposes by action of management or the Board of Directors or may 
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. 

Financing and Other Fee Revenue - Under the Single Family Program, the 
Agency originates single family mortgage loans which are pooled into mortgage­
backed securities used as direct collateral for the respective bonds. As part of this 
securitization, the Agency earns servicing re lease fees net of originating lender 
fees. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in confom1ity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 2: SUMl\1ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the fmaocial statements and the reported amounts of reveoues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Change in Accounting Principles and Restatement - For the years ended 
September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Agency implemented GASB Statement No. 87-
Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 enhances the relevance and consistency of 
information for the Agency's leasing activities. It establishes requirements for 
lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financing of the right to use 
an underlying asset. A lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right to use a lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable aod a deferred inflow of resources. These changes were incorporated in 
the Agency's 2022 and 2021 finaocial statements and bad an effect on the 
beginning net position for fiscal year 2022. The Agency recognized $195,823 in 
net book value for the intangible right to use and a lease liability of$ I 92,765 for 
equipment leased in July of 2021. 

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 had the following effect on net 
position reported September 30, 2021 : 

Net Position - September 30, 2021 
Adjustment: 

Net Book Value Leased Asset 
Lease Liability 

Restated Net Position - September 30, 2021 

$ 155,554,465 

195,823 
(192,765) 

$ 155,557,523 

As a result of the implementation of GASS Statement No. 87, the effect on the 
balances previously presented for fiscal year 2021 is as follows: 

l.bhince Sb~ : 
Ptopetty and equir ment 
A~utmlatcd dcprociatioi:i ai:id amottizaliou 
Ui\se liability 

Total net position 

General and adrnioistrativc 4 reduction of lease cxpcose and interest 
Oqwcciation and amonimtion 

Sla.lf'IRl.'flf of Cai h Flows: 
Paymcoli to vendors 
P\'ino:::ip.,1 pa)'mcots on tease from opcratioos 
OpeHlin_g ineome 
Oepedall()n and :ln'h'll'liHll()n 
No11-eash lease 3Ctivil)' • Purchase of capital :mets through lease 

22 

September 30, 2021 
Previously Rcpoctcd 

$ 6.909,120 
(5.284.M2) 

155.554.465 

6.095.8()(, 
382,43 1 

(14.!0S.7S8) 

J.t,JSl.599 
31t!.4$1 

Sq,(ember JO, 2021 
Restatement Rcst1""' 

$ 20$.614 $ 7,114.134 
(9.791) (5.293.S43) 

19l,76S 192,765 
3.058 155.557.523 

( 12.849) 6.082.957 
9,791 392.272 

12.849 (14.692.909) 
( 12,849) (12,849) 

l.058 14J55,657 
9.791 3()1.212 

205.614 205.614 



NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES 

Bond proceeds and revenues from mortgages, mortgage-backed secuntJes and 
investments are invested in authorized investments as defined in the respective 
indentures and, for the General Fund, in accordance with the Agency's 
Investment Policy, until required for purchasing mortgage-backed securities or 
originating mortgage loans, funding reserves, paying debt service or redeeming 
outstanding bonds and notes, and funding program and administrative and 
operating expenses. 

The following assets, reported at fair value and held by the Fw1ds at September 
30, 2022, were evaluated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 40 for interest 
rate risk, credit risk, concentration of credit risk and custodial credit risk. 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

The following assets, reported at fair value and held by the Fw1ds at September 
30, 2021, were evaluated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 40 for interest 
rate risk, credit risk, concentration of credit risk and custodial credit risk. 
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Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Under the Revenue Obligation 
Funds, the tenns of the investments are set to allow for no market value Joss at the 
time the invested funds are drawn for uses authorized under the indentures. As a 
means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses from rising interest rates under 
the General Fund, the Agency's Investment Policy requires that the maturities of 
the investment portfolio are structured to be concurrent with cash needs in order 
to minimize losses that may be incurred from sale of investments prior to 
maturity. The money market funds operate in accordance with Rule 2a-7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. These funds can reasonably be 
expected to have a fair value that will be w1affected by interest rate changes 
because the interest rates are variable and the principal can be recovered on 
demand. The cost of the money market mutual funds approximated fair value. 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2022, the amortized cost, fair value and maturities for the 
cash, cash equivalents, investments and mortgage-backed securities for the 
General Fund are as follows : 
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As of September 30, 2021, the amortized cost, fair value and maturities for the 
cash, cash equivalents, investments and mortgage-backed securities for the 
General Fund were as follows: 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2022, the amortized cost, fair value and maturities for the 
cash, cash equivalents, investments and mortgage-backed securities for the 
Combined Revenue Obligation Funds are as follows: 
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As of September 30, 202 I, the amortized cost, fair value and maturities for the 
cash, cash equivalents, investments and mortgage-backed securities for the 
Combined Revenue Obligation Funds were as follows: 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the amortized cost, fair value and maturities 
for the cash, cash equivalents, investments and mortgage-backed securities for 
each Revenue Obligation Fund are included as Supplemental Information to these 
financial statements. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, the Agency's deposits may not be returned to it. The Agency does 
not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of September 30, 2022, 
$60,026,470 of the Agency's bank balance of $66,276,469 was exposed to 
custodial credit risk as follows: 

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 9,079,998 
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank 50,946,472 ------------
Total $ 60,026,470 

J..n addition, invesnnents, inclusive of certificate of deposit, corporate obligations, 
municipal obligations, and GSE obligations, as well as mortgage-backed 
securities are held with one custodian and were exposed to custodial credit risk 
above $500,000 of the reported balance as of September 30, 2022. 

Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an 
issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. All of 
General Fund cash and investments are either collateralized, FDIC-insured, or 
invested in the U.S. Government, U.S. Government Agency or government­
sponsored enterprises or highly rated corporate debt securities. In general all 
investment securities under the Revenue Obligation Funds must be at a rating not 
adversely affecting the rating of the respective bonds; and financial institutions 
wbo are counterparty to the Agency roust be rated at least comparable to the 
existing rating on the Agency's bonds, unless counterparty ratings lower than the 
bond ratings are pennitted in a specific indenture and do not affect the ratings on 
the bonds as determined at the time the investment securities are acquired or 
investment agreements are executed. The ratings on the 1996 Single Family 
Mortgage Revenue Bonds and 1988 Collateralized Single Family Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds as of September 30, 2022 and 2021 were AA+ by Standard and 
Poor's. All multifamily bond indentures under the Multifamily Development and 
Mult.ifamily Programs were rated by Moody's or Standard and Poor's at various 
levels depending on the credit quality of the underlying collateral or were unrated 
private placements where investment ratings confom1ed to the specific bond 
investor requirements. 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2022, the credit quality and percentages of the total portfolio 
of cash equivalents and investments under the Agency's General Fw1d are as 
follows: 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 202 1, the credit quality and percentages of the total portfolio 
of cash equivalents and investments under the Agency's General Fund were as 
follows: 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2022, the credit quality and percentages of the total portfolio 
of cash equivalents, investments and mortgage-backed securities under the 
Revenue Obligation Funds are as follows : 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 202 1, the credit quality and percentages of the total portfolio 
of cash equivalents, investments and mortgage-backed securities under the 
Revenue Obligation Funds were as follows: 

PU.-C!HI•~ oti-.t.i ..... lf■<k-rl)incS«-. rltiet: Cr Nlk R.11-t/ ....... r t lt Vtl lle I IJ\IC,tmnol$ C~11u«-. Al[flW'f S.PPO"f-« (AIWtNI 

Q!1'i&ili!t~b t!li!~I~ 

Non-Mon,,.--y~tNktT llc~l\ $ I ocrn ,.,, ""'" lh1«ll~l!zoJ. um.m,io, 
Da:nM¥I Moocy ~1.uk.:t lkrosfu 4.9.f l ,•)2! '-"" Pl MOOll;N 
Moiwy M:.rl.'~I f11m.1S 19.719,641 1.8% "'"·"" Moody~ 

'fotal (';-sh • "fill (',i~ F'411i"'l!lcn~ 24.f,(,1.563 .... 
~ 

0:Mi.fit1'1C' ofDtp.-,,it lU2S,OOO '-"" ,.,, ...... f~I ltt:111:rvt-Hdd An Coll;,10V 
I/IIIC$IIIK'l\t AJtttmtfll9 UW.li}S,OIJO 4)7% "" Moody'$ 
Cm·~Ag«llll:'nlJ: J4.47S,OOO 11.6% 1w Moody's 
lti\'CSll1Wltl-"$Nlllltl;ln\Y JS,JS0,000 (SJ% Al MOO!ly'!i: 
(;$£0bliJ)ll'IOB} 11',?% ., .. ..... Mood)''$ 

Toti\ llw,'Cl'IICJIIJ 215.%2.990 SU% 

M~t--Bat'bid MC\lril~ 

(;lmtoe~ )..4.&(,J:;, t 4% ... Moody'$ 
F'unnit).W 2.1U,lS1 U¾ "" Moody's 
ffflllli"~b,; Mn.&n U% .., MMy'!i: 

T<11111 ~Wn.Ptc>~l.ctl $i:(11ril.tt$ l0."182...S ll "" 
Cti•biiwd R"'NIUf Obla:,11i0tt f u-.b T.iid 
C• oil. I - Ill- ti •!Ml Mo~ 

S !$1~ IOU¾ $,re~ 

The cash and cash equivalents, investment and mortgage-backed security 
portfolio with breakdown by credit quality and percentage of total portfolio for 
each of the Revenue Obligation Funds at September 30, 2022 and 2021 are listed 
as Supplemental Information to these financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Agency's combined cash and cash equivalents 
balance as of September 30, 2022 and 2021 consists primarily of amounts held in 
fully collateralized demand deposit bank accounts under the General Fund and in 
highly rated money market fund trust accounts set up for each revenue bond 
indenture and Certificates of Participation and administered by the Agency's bond 
trustees. The collateral for the demand deposits is held by either the Federal 
Reserve Bank or a third-party, as a collateral agent tmder the tri-party agreements. 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

Investments - The Agency follows the Investment Policy guidelines with regard 
to its General Fund financial assets and Revenue Obligation Fund indentures. The 
policy states that the Agency financial assets shall be held in cash and cash 
equivalents or invested and managed with the intention of obtaining the highest 
possible total return consistent with the Agency's liquidity needs and a prudent 
level of investment risk. Under the bond programs and Certificates of 
Participation, the permitted investments are stipulated in the respective covenants 
of the indentures of trust. 

Investments of proceeds from bond issuances in investment agreements are 
governed by the covenants of the respective indentures of trust entered between 
the Agency, the trustee and the investment agreement provider. All investment 
agreements are fixed interest rate investment contracts with rated financial 
institutions. In case of a downgrade beyond a preset threshold, the investment 
providers are required to collateralize both principal and interest with qualifying 
securities to be held by a designated collateral agent with mark to market and 
undervalue cure provisions. 

Investments in money market funds are short-term in nature and are held by bond 
trustees for the benefit of the respective indentures. They carry the highest short­
term credit ratings by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies, such as 
Standard & Poor's and Moody's Investors Service. Investments in the U.S. 
Treasury securities are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States 
Goverrunent. 

Mortgage-backed Securities - Ginnie Mae mortgage-backed secunhes are 
guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association ("Ginnie Mae or 
GNMA"), an instrument of the United States Government. GNMA securities are 
"fully modified pass-through" mortgage-backed securities which requi re monthly 
payments by an FHA lender, as the issuer of the Guaranteed Security to the 
Agency. GNMA guarantees timely payment of principal and interest on 
Guaranteed Securities. 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac mortgage-backed pass-through securities are top­
rated by Standard & Poor's and Moody's Investors Service. The principal and 
interest payment on these mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed by Fannie 
Mae and Freddie Mac, accordingly. Though there is no explicit guarantee that 
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac mortgage-backed securities are backed by the full 
faith and credit of the U.S. Government., there is, however, an implicit guarantee, 
as government-sponsored enterprises are chartered by the U.S. Congress. In 2008 
both Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae were placed into the U.S. Government 
conservatorship. The rating agencies continue to assign high credit ratings to both 
of these entities. 

Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac mortgage-backed securities are 
reported at their market values in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 . It is 
the intention of the Agency and the indentures to hold these mortgage-backed 
securities until the underlying loans are paid in full, or, if allowed, until the 
respective bonds become optionally redeemable and the sale of these securities 
does not negatively affect the indenture cash flows. 

For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 202 I, under the Agency's Single 
Family Program Fund, $1,117,559 and $150,175, respectively, of non-operating 
expense was recorded in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in 
Net Position to record the unrealized loss in the fair market value of the Fund's 
mortgage-backed security and investment portfolio. 

For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, under the Agency's Single 
Family NIBP Fund, $0 and $32,012, respectively, of non-operating expense was 
recorded in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position to 
record the unrealized loss in the fair market value of the Fund's mortgage-backed 
security and investment portfolio. 

For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, under the Agency's 
Multifamily Development Program Fund, $114,635 and $19,496, respectively, of 
non-operating expense was recorded in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Change in Net Position to record the unrealized loss in the fair market value of the 
Fund's mortgage-backed security and investment portfolio. 
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NOTE 3: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, under the Agency's General 
Fund, $5,625,294 and $951,288, respectively, of non-operating expense was 
recorded in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position to 
record the unrealized loss in the fair market value of the Fund's mortgage-backed 
security and investment portfolio. 

Investments in Joint Ventures - DCHFA established the Housing Investment 
Platform ("HIP") in June 2017 to make innovative investments in support of the 
District of Columbia housing market outside of its traditional bond and tax credit 
financ ing. The investments are targeted towards developing workforce housing by 
partnering with emerging developers. DCHF A is the sole member of the DCHF A 
HIP Manager, LLC, which is the general partner of the DC Housing Investment 
Platfonn, LP. DC Housing Investment Platform, LP is the limited partner in the 
ultimate development entity. DCHFA Housing Investment Platform, LP closed on 
one investment during fiscal year 2022 and one investment during 2021. As of 
September 30, 2022 and 2021, the investment in joint ventures totaled $1,345,435 
and $981,668, respectively. 

Fair Value of Investments 

The Agency has adopted GASB No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application. This statement establishes a hierarchy of inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value: 

• Level l - quoted market prices in active markets. 

• Level 2 - inputs other than quoted market prices that are observable either 
directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 - unobservable inputs. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE­
BACKED SECURITIES (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2022, the following table presents the investments that the 
Agency measured at fair value: 

Total Level I Level 2 Level3 
Cenificates of Deposit $ 7,461.696 $ $ 7,461,696 $ 
lnvesbnent Agreements I 4 7 .865,562 147,865,562 
Co1poratc Obligations 43.028.816 43,028,816 
Municipal Obligations 4.038.167 4,038,167 
GSE Obligations 3.925.089 3.925,089 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 12,703,359 12.703,359 
Mongage Backed Securities 12,389.739 12.389,739 
Total Jnvesunems and MBS s 231,412,428 s 12,703,359 $ 218,709,069 $ 

As of September 30, 2021, the following table presents the investments that the 
Agency measured at fair value: 

Tot>I Level 1 Leve] 2 Level3 
Certificates of ixposit $ 16,634,396 $ $ 16.634.396 $ 

ln\'eshnent Agreements 202,660,000 202.660.000 
Corporate Obligations 4 1,342,292 41.342.292 
Municipal Obligations 5,320,576 5,320.576 
GSE Obligarions 4.367,103 4,367.103 
U.S. Tre,isury Obligations 7,656,012 7,656,012 
Mongage Backed Securities 17,565,826 17,565,826 
Total Jnvesrments and MBS $ 295,546,205 s 7,656,012 $ 287,890.193 $ 

Debt securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using 
prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Debt securities classified in 
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique. 
Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities' relationship to 
benchmark quoted prices. 

• Amounts invested in U.S. treasury securities are comprised of 
securities valued using quoted market prices (Level 1) which 
are then allocated to position holders. 

• Amounts invested in certificates of deposits, investment 
agreements, corporate obligations, municipal obligations, GSE 
obligations and mortgage backed securities are comprised of 
securities which are priced by industry standard vendors, using 
obsen1able inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades 
broker/dealer quotes, and issuer spreads (Level 2) which are 
then allocated to position holders at a per unit value. 
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NOTE 4: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

MORTGAGE AND CONSTRUCTION LOANS RECEIVABLE 

Multifamily mortgage and construction loans receivable are assets under the 
Multifamily Development Program secured by deeds of trust evidencing first 
mortgage liens on related real property. These loans are insured by the FHA, and 
the Agency through the Risk-Share Program. Fixed and periodic variable interest 
rates on these mortgage and construction loans as of September 30, 2022 range 
from 3.4% to 6.9% with a loan repayment period ofup to 40 years. 

During fiscal year 2019, the Agency funded subordinate lien forgivable 0% non­
amortizing dovn1-payment assistance loans in connection \vith the purchased and 
sold first lien loans under its General Fund. Due to the low likelihood of recovery 
for any of these loan amounts, the Agency recorded an allowance equivalent to 
the original loan amounts. Starting on September 9, 2019, the Agency 
discontinued the forgivable 0% non-amortizing down-payment ass istance loan 
program and launched a new 0% fixed rate non-amortizing down-payment 
assistance loan program. The new program is a deferred loan that will become 
immediately due and payable upon the occurrence of specific events as defined in 
the Loan Disclosure document(s) of the DC Open Doors Down Payment 
Assistance Loan program. The amount of the forgivable loans and the 
corresponding allowance under the old program as of September 30, 2022 and 
2021 was $0 and $65,563, respectively. The amount of the deferred loans under 
the new program as of Sept.ember 30, 2022 and 2021, was $6,078,723 and 
$4,949,448, respectively. 

Combined restricted mortgage and construction loans as of September 30, 2022 
and 2021 were $202,874,771 and $207,582,145, respectively. For the years ended 
September 30, 2022 and 2021, there was no allowance for bond program loan 
losses under the Agency Revenue Obligation Funds. 

As part of its General Fund operations, the Agency performs loan servicing under 
the risk-sharing agreement with HUD, where HUD pays 100.0% of the amount 
needed to retire bonds issued in connection with a defaulted risk-share loan at the 
time of the initial claim. Any loss at the time of final claim on a defaulted 
multifamily project is risk-shared between FHA at 90.0% and the Agency at 
10.0%. The most recent program enhancement allows the Agency to share losses 
on a 50%/50% basis with FHA. As of September 30, 2022, the HUD Risk-Share 
Reserve funds had a balance of $0 and the outstanding principal balance of the 
risk-share insured loans comprised of 20 loans was $202.8 million. As of 
September 30, 2021, the HUD Risk-Share Reserve funds had a balance of $0 and 
the outstanding principal balance of the risk-share insured loans comprised of 20 
loans was $202.2 million. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

MORTGAGE AND CONSTRUCTION LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 

In addition to its bond programs, within its General Fund the Agency administers 
the McKinney Act Program. Under its McKinney Act Program, the Agency 
originates predevelopment McKinney Act bridge loans to finance acquisition, 
predevelopment and rehabilitation costs associated with multifamily housing 
developments applying for bond financing with the Agency. These loans are 
typically unenhanced loans repaid at the time the bond financing is put in place. 
At September 30, 2022, the balance of total loans outstanding, before the 
allowance for uncollectible loans, was $2,470,665, including $884,857 in loans at 
various stages of default process. At September 30, 2021, the balance of total 
loans outstanding was $4,662,791, of which $883,715 was attributed to loans at 
various stages of default process. 

The Agency recorded an allowance for uncollectible McKinney Act Program 
loans for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 in the amount of 
$884,857 and $883,715, respectively. The Agency recorded a net increase in the 
allowance for principal loss on McKinney Act Program loans during the years 
ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 for an allowance of bad debt in the amount 
of$1,142 and $1,629, respectively. 

Beginning balance 
Net increase in allowance for uncollectible loans 
Ending balance 

2022 2021 
$ 883,715 $ 882,086 

1,142 1,629 

$ 884,857 =$===8=83=,7=15= 

For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, the respective balances and 
changes in the provision for uncollectible interest on the McKinney Act loans 
under the General Fund were as follows: 

Beginning balance 
Net increase in allowance for uncollectible interest 
Ending balance 

$ 

$ 

2022 202 1 
340,843 $ 309,504 
31.340 31 339 

312, 183 _s ____ 34_o..,,84_3_ 

In addition to the reserves noted above for McKinney Act loans, the Agency also 
has an allowance for down payment assistance associated with forgivable single 
family loans as well as multi-family loans that are held on balance sheet (e.g., 
HUD risk share loans). 

The Agency's allowance for doubtful accounts policy is to charge expenses for 
estimated probable losses which are established as an allowance for loan losses. 
The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb 

37 



NOTE 4: 

NOTE 5: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

MORTGAGE AND CONSTRUCTION LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 

losses inherent in existing loans based on evaluations of collectability and prior 
loss experience as well as a competitive benchmarkiog study. 

Until September 9, 2019, DCHFA's down payment assistance core product was a 
five-year forgivable 0% interest rate loan. The Agency reserved for the full 
amount of the down payment assistance at loan inception and then booked 
recoveries to the extent that borrowers paid off the loan within the five-year 
forgiveness period. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Agency has $.2 
million and $.3 million in reserves, respectively. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The following is the detail of changes in capital assets during the year ended 
September 30, 2022: 

Non--def)rt.eioble capital assets 
Land 

Total non-<:tc()(cciablc capital asscis 
Depreciable capital assets 

Building 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Building ne-t of accumulated deprrei.ition 

furniture and equipment 
Less: accmuulated dcp.-ccWtion 

Fuminire and equipmtfll net of accwnulated dept'eciation 

leased assets • equipmMt 
Less: accumulated amortization 

Leased assets• equipment net of accumulated amoni7.ation 

Total Building, fumimre and equipment 
~: accumulated depredatk,n 

Total Building, furniture and cquipmmt, net of accumulated depreciation 

S-Oftwarc 
LC$&: acic:umulated amortization 

Software net of accwnularOO amortiuuKK\ 

Total capital assets 
Less: accumulated depreci"tion al)d .'lmorti.z.a.tion 

Total capital asst'l!J, net of accumulated depreciation and amoctization 

(Continued) 
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Stpttmber 30, 
20? I I as n'$Ulted 

s 573 000 
573 000 

3.540,523 
!~9341467) 

606.056 

1,547,443 
!l.108.l25l 

439.1 18 

205,614 
(9,791! 

195 823 

5.293.580 
!'10.5~5~3! 
1.240.997 

1,821,154 
! 1.24 1.260! 

579.894 

7.687.734 
(5,193.843) 

s 2 393891 

Addllions September 3-0, 
IDl5poslrion~ 2022 

s s 573 000 
573 000 

204,048 3.744.l71 
169.002l p,oo,,469l 
135.046 741.1 02 

(732,229) 815,214 
653.402 !454.92ll 
(18,827) 360.191 

205,614 
!J9,I65l (48,956! 
p9,I 65) 156658 

(528,181) 4,765..)99 
545 235 Pi507l348! 
17.054 1.258.051 

1,82 1,154 
(105.895! ! 1.347.155! 
(105,895) 473.999 

(528,181) 7,159,553 
439.340 i4,854.S03) 

$ ,8818411 s 213051050 
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NOTE 6: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

The following is the detail of changes in capital assets during the year ended 
September 30, 2021: 

Se-ptembtr lO, Additions September 30. 
2020 IDi.s1,?03l:ition~ 2021 1 a.s restah.>d 

Non-depreciable capital 8$SCIS 
Land $ 573,000 $ $ 573,000 

Total non-depreciable capital assets 573.000 573,000 

Depreciable capita) as.sets 

Buildint 3.54-0,523 3.54-0,523 
Less: accwnulated depredation (2.803.337) (131.IJOl Q.934.467) 

Building net of accwnulatod dq,~iation 737. 186 !'11.11oi 606.056 

Furniture and eqt1ipment 1.523.560 23.81!3 1,547.443 
Less: accumulate.d depreciation (1,089, 100) (19.225) o.1os.mi 

Fumiru.re -'l\d equiprnettt net of accumulated depreciation 434.460 4,658 439.1 18 

Leased as.,e1s - equipment 205.614 205,614 
Less: accwnulatcd amortization !9,791! !9,791! 

Leased a$SClS -equipment net of accumulated amortization 195.82.l 195,X23 

Total Building. furniture and equipment 5,064.083 229,497 5.293,580 
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,892,437) (160,146) (4,052,583) 

Total Building, fu rniture and equipment. net of 3«\ltnul,ued depre<:i3tion 1,171.646 69.35 1 1.24-0.997 

Software 1,821,154 1,821,154 
Less: ;lCCwnulated amortization !1,009,134! i232,126l i 1J41d60l 

Softv.·arc- net of accumulated amoni.zatk>n 812.020 (232,1261 579,R94 

Total capital assets 7,458.237 229.497 7,687,734 
Less: ~ccumulated depreciation and ~mortiunion (4.901.571! 1392.2122 (5.293.843! 

Total capital assets. net of accumulated depreciation oud amortizotfon s 2 556 666 $ ! 162,775) s 2J93,89I 

Depreciation and amortization expense for fiscal years 2022 and 2021, as restated, 
was $336,970 and $392,272, respectively. 

BONDS PAYABLE AND OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

The loans, bonds and notes issued by the Agency are special obligations of the 
Agency and are payable from the revenue and special funds of the applicable 
indentures. The bonds and notes do not constitute debt of and are not guaranteed 
by the District or any other program of the District. All mortgage revenue bond 
multifamily projects financed to date have been issued by the Agency as stand­
alone pass-through financings with no direct economic recourse to the Agency as 
the issuer. 

The provisions of the various bond indentures require or allow for the special 
redemption of bonds at par through the use of unexpended bond proceeds and 
excess funds accumulated primarily through prepayment of mortgage loans and 
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BONDS PAY ABLE AND OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 

mortgage-backed securities. All outstanding bonds are subject to redemption at 
the option of the Agency or the borrower, in whole or in part at any time, after 
certain dates, as specified in the respective bond indenrures and bond resolutions, 
at prescribed redemption prices. The redemption premiluns can range up to 5.0%. 

Under the Multifamily Programs, this option generally cannot be exercised until 
the bonds have been outstanding for ten years as provided in the various 
indentures. Term bonds are generally subject to redemption, without premium, 
from mandatory sinking fund payments. 

Bonds issued to provide financing for the Agency's housing programs are 
collateralized by: 

• Mortgage-backed securities made in connection with underlying loans. 

• Mortgage loans made on the related multifamily developments or single 
family residential mortgage loans purchased. 

• Investments of bond proceeds, debt service reserves and escrow accounts, 
all revenues, mortgage payments, and recovery payments received by the 
Agency from investments, mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities 
made on the related developments and pledged to the respective trust 
indentures. 

The following is a summary of the bond and debt activity for the year ended 
September 30, 2022 and the debt outstanding and loans, bonds and certificates of 
participation payable as of September 30, 2022: 

-°""'"""i.t"' ms •.w 'IUl.'llln - ·-·-~~·-·-~~·-·-1 J"'1»' t U'U."' -- 1 ~ J l.lW.-m -- t 1.1'1.m f l.TW,m 
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..... 't:'ltt"itt .. WJ!U ,,.., ........ .,,, R::f:mf .,,nm Phmt"l'I .. Wi!B 

il'Hl~r..ii,M<­
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

BONDS PAY ABLE AND OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 
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NOTE 6: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

BONDS PAYABLE AND OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 

As of September 30, 2022, the required principal payments for all Agency debt 
outstanding (including mandatory sinking fund payments but excluding special 
and optional redemptions) that occurred subsequent to September 30, 2022 and 
interest payments for each of the next five years and in five-year increments 
thereafter are as follows: 

For the Year 

Ending September 
30, 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

Totals 

Unarnonized 
Premiwn/ 

(Discown) 

Bood s P ayable 

For die Year Ending 
September 30. 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2028-2032 

2033-2037 

2038-2042 

2043-2047 

2048-2052 

2053-2057 

2058-2062 

T otals 

Unamortized 
Prcmiwn / 
(Discount) 

Bonds Payable 

$ 

$ 

s 

1988 Collateralized S ingle Family 
Mortgage Revenue Bonds 

Interest 

36,656 $ 

36,656 
36,656 
36,657 

Principal 

575,000 

Single Family New Issue 
Bonds Program 

Interest Principal 

$ 

146,625 S 575,000 =$===== $ 

$ 

s 575,000 

Muttifamitv Oevetopment 

Program 
Interest 

7,638.083 $ 

7,504,539 
7.430.623 
7,178,965 
7.108,596 

31,574,495 
28,802,338 
19,786,631 

6,206,402 
2,860,902 

883,646 
14,681 

126,989,901 S 

$ 

$ 

Principal 

1,150,000 $ 

1,230,000 
18,360.000 
2.415.000 

10,745,000 
37,770,000 
15,720,000 

121,395,000 
15,180,000 
22,276,473 
5,960.000 

675,000 
252,876,473 S 

45,558 

252,922,031 

$ 

$ 

M ultifamily 

Program 
Interest Principal 

974,597 $ 

942,249 
907,900 
871.157 
832,181 

3,510,399 
2,147,613 

579,298 
54,430 

782,930 
835,063 
889.31 4 
946,700 

1,002,421 
5,778,846 
7,879,120 
5,384,865 

1,005,569 

10,819,824 =$====24..,,5=0='4,.,,828=> 

$ 

s 24,504,828 

The interest calculations on outstanding variable rate bonds under the Multifamily 
Development Programs are based on the variable rates in effect on September 30, 
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NOTE 6: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

BONDS PAYABLE AND OTHER DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 

2022 and are not indicative of the actual interest expense that will be incurred in 
future years. As rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments will vary. 

Jn March 2017, DCHFA entered into a grant agreement witb the DC DHCD as 
the sub-recipient in the administration of Community Development Block Grant 
("CDBG") funds. Accordingly, the Agency established a $3.0 million line of 
credit with Industrial Bank to serve as a facility to fund Home Purchase 
Assistance Program ("HPAP") loans. The credit line is paid do¼11 upon receipt of 
reimbursements for DHCD on a monthly basis. During fiscal year 2020, the line 
of credit was increased to $5.0 million. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the 
total outstanding balance of the credit line totaled $2,780,425 and $2,582,887, 
respectively. 

Leased Assets 

The Agency is the lessee of equipment under lease agreements expiring through 
2026. The assets and liabilities under these leases are recorded at the lower of the 
minimum lease payments or the fai r value of the assets and amortized over the life 
of the lease tenn. Included in capital assets are assets under these leases with a 
cost of $205,614 and $205,614, respectively, as of September 30, 2022 and 2021. 
Amortization expense related to the leases was $39, I 65 and $9,79 I, respectively, 
for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021. Accumulated amortization 
relating to the leases was $48,956 and $9,791, respectively, as of September 30, 
2022 and 202 1. 

Future minimum lease payments under the leases are as follows: 

For the Year Ending September 30, 
2023 $ 

2024 
2025 
2026 

Total minium lease payments 
Less: amount representing interest 

$ 

43 

42,218 
42,218 
42,218 
38,699 

I 65,353 
(9,528) 

155,825 



NOTE 7: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CO NTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Lease Liability 

The following is a stunmary of changes in lease liability for the year ended 
September 30, 2022: 

l..ca.,;e Liability 

To1al 

Balance 
October I, 202 1 locrea"e 

192,765 --=$ __ _ 

192,16s _s __ _ 

13.alancc Due within 
Decrease September 30, 2022 one year 

$ (36,940) --'$'-------=15"-"5,8"'2.I'- $ 36,940 

$ (36.940) _S ___ IS~S,8_15_ $ 36.940 

The follow ing is a summary of changes in lease liability for the year ended 
September 30, 2021 : 

Lease Liability 

Total 

REBATE LIABILITY 

Balance 
October I. 2020 

s 

Balance Due within 
lncrt.tse Seplo.nber 30. 2021 one vw 

s 2os.61 4 s ( 12.849> --=s'-------=19=-2.-"',6s'- s 36.940 

S 205.61 4 S ( 12.849) _S ___ l9_2.7_6_5 S 36.940 

In accordance with the Internal Revenue Service Code (the "Code") , the Agency 
has recorded as rebate liabil ity for excess investment earnings in connection with 
tax-exempt bonds and notes issued after I 981. The excess investment earnings 
arise due to actual investment yields permitted to be retained by the indentures 
under the Code. The Code requires 90.0% of such excess investment earnings to be 
remitted to the United States Treasury every five years and in full at the final 
redemption of the bonds. Interest income on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Change in Net Position is reduced by the rebate liability due to excess 
investment earnings. The increase/decrease in fair value of investments on the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position is adjusted by the 
change in the estimated rebate liability due to the change in fair value of 
investments. The Revenue Obligation Funds had no rebate liability from interest 
income or from unrealized gains on investments. For the years ended September 
30, 2022 and 2021, the rebate liability in the single family program was $40,095. 

The project funds held for borrower and other liabilities include funds contributed 
by the owners of the projects and/or funds received from low-income housing tax 
credit equity providers, District agencies, and the Department of Housing and 
Community Development. The Agency includes in the financial statements, funds 
received from these providers to the extent of unexpended monies in the project 
accounts (see Note 3). 
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NOTE 9: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

PROJECT FUNDS HELD FOR BORROWER AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

Under the 1996 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, the Agency administers 
grant funds received from the District's DHCD under the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development's Home Investment Partnership Program 
("HOME"). These funds were either blended with the bond proceeds to yield 
interest rate subsidy on mortgage loans securitized into mortgage-backed 
securities or were used to help homebuyers with closing costs, including down­
payment assistance. Under the respective grant agreements, the Agency may 
recycle repayments of HOME funds into its bond programs. There was no transfer 
by the Agency of HOME funds back to DHCD during fiscal year 2022. As of 
September 30, 2022 and 2021, total HOME Program restricted assets were 
$1,100,773 and $1,100,773, respectively. 

PREP AID FEES 

The prepaid fees include funds related to non-refundable construction monitoring 
fees associated with multifamily financ ing activities. The prepaid fees are 
recognized over each project's anticipated construction period. 

NOTE 10: NET POSITION 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Capital Assets include non-depreciable land, 
as well as, building net of related debt and accumulated depreciation, furniture 
and equipment net of related accumulated depreciation, leasehold improvements, 
leased assets - equipment, and software net of related accumulated amortization. 
Net investment in capital assets at September 30, 2022 and 2021 were $2,149,225 
and $2,201,126, respectively. 

Revenue Obligations Funds - The Revenue Obligation Funds net position is 
restricted through debt covenants as collateral for the respective bond issues and 
credit lines. Combined restricted net position related to the Revenue Obligation 
Funds as of September 30, 2022 and 2021 were $30,607,809 and $28,730,761, 
respectively. 

Risk Share Program - Under the General Fund, the initial deposit made to 
participate in the Risk Sharing Program and the contributions of 1.0% of the 
FHA-insured mortgage balances in the Risk Sharing Program reserve account are 
also restricted. The Agency maintained restricted net position related to the HUD 
Risk-Share Program as of September 30, 2022 and 2021 at $0 and $0, 
respectively. 
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NOTE 10: 

NOTE 11: 

NOTE 12: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NET POSITION (Continued) 

McKinney Act Fund - The Agency qualified for 50.0% of the savings resulting 
from Financing Adjustment Factors ("FAF") on Section (I I)(b) bond refunding 
transactions. These funds are programmatically restricted as they are only to be 
used to benefit very low-income persons. As a result, the Agency established a 
revolving loan fund to provide credit enhancement or loan guarantees, and finance 
certain special need projects, such as, shelter for the District 's homeless and 
facilities for individuals who have contracted AfDS. Restricted net position 
related to the McKinney Act Fund as of September 30, 2022 and 2021 was 
$9,624,933 and $9,156,761, respectively. 

Unrestricted Net Position - As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, under the 
General Fund were $122,140,399 and $115,468,875, respectively, in unrestricted 
net position. The unrestricted net position is used to support the Agency's issuer 
credit rating. 

RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Agency established a 457(b) deferred compensation plan (the "457(b) Plan") 
for the benefit of its eligible employees effective October I, 1997. The Plan was 
amended and changed recordkeepers effective October I, 20 I 5. The amended 
Plan allows for an employee match up to 7.0% of an employee's salary on a five­
year vesting schedule. Plan expense for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 
2021 was $274,240 and $246,768, respectively. 

OTHER INCOME 

The Agency's other income for fiscal year 2022 is comprised of the follow ing: 
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NOTE 13: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

OTHER INCOME (Continued) 

The Agency's other income for fiscal year 2021 was comprised of the following : 

Dnai£!ioo 

1 .. ,ac.ti! 1ttt 
lt"Pl romi 
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FEDERAL AND CITY PROGRAMS 

On March l , 2017, DCHFA signed a Subrecipient Grant Agreement with the 
District of Columbia Department of Housing and Community Development to 
administer $5.7 million of Community Development Block Grant funds, allocated 
to the District of Columbia by the U.S. Department of HUD under Title I of the 
U.S. Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. During 2020, the 
Subrecipient Grant Agreement was amended to include HOME Grant Funds. The 
Community Development Block and HOME Grant funds were used to fund down 
payment assistance activities and services. During the years ended September 30, 
2022 and 2021 , respectively, the DCHFA received a funding extension under the 
program in the total amounts of$ I 0. I million and $ I 0.6 million, which includes 
$7.5 million and $8. I million, to be funded from federal funds and $2.6 million 
and $2.5 millioo, to be funded from local funds. As of September 30, 2022 and 
2021, the Agency had incurred program expenses of $7.4 millioo and $9.3 
million, included in program expenses on the statement of revenues, expenses and 
change in net position, funded by $ 10.l million and $9.3 millioo awards, 
respectively. Of the program expenses incurred during the years ended September 
30, 2022 and 2021, $5.7 million and $7 .3 million, respectively, were funded by 
federal funds and $1.7 million and $2.0 million, respectively, were funded by 
local funds . 

In fiscal year 2019, DCHFA, by enactment by tbe Council of the District of 
Columbia, established an 18-month pilot program, Reverse Mortgage Insurance 
and Tax Payment ("ReMIT"), that allows qualified homeowners to apply for and 
receive up to $25,000 io financial assistance for payment of past due property 
taxes and property insurance debts that have put qualified homeowners at risk of 
foreclosure. The program was extended during fiscal year 2020. DCHF A records 
a lien on the subject property in the amount of the financial assistance provided to 
the qualified homeowner, which is subordinate to the reverse mortgage lender in 
the first position. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, DCHFA provided $0 and 
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NOTE 14: 

NOTE 15: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

$90,384, respectively, in financial assistance to qualified homeowners under the 
program. 

COMJ\!IITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

As of September 30, 2022, the Agency had total mortgage commitments in the 
amount of $127.9 million on projects under constrnction in the Multifamily 
Development Program, of which $50.8 million has been drawn and $77.1 million 
remains to be drawn. 

The Agency is a defendant in two lawsuits and other claims that occur in the 
ordinary course of operations. It is the opinion of the General Counsel that such 
lawsuit and claims will not have a material adverse impact on the Agency's 
financial condition. 

Since early 2020, there has been a global outbreak of a novel strain of corona virus 
("COVID-19"), which has forced the United States to declare a national 
emergency, institute "stay-at-home" orders and restrict operations of non-essential 
businesses. Such actions are adversely impacting many industries. COVID-19 
could have a continued and prolonged adverse impact on economic and market 
conditions and could trigger a period of economic shutdown. The impact of 
COVID-19 oo businesses is evolving, and the extent aod duration of the economic 
fallout from this pandemic remains unclear, making any estimate or assumption as 
of September 30, 2022 inherently less certain than they would be absent to current 
and potential impacts of COVID-19. The magnitude and duration of COVID-19 
and its impact on the Agency's activities, its borrowers, and investments is 
uncertain and will mostly depend on future events, which cannot be predicted. As 
this pandemic continues and if economic conditions worsen, it may have a long­
tem1 impact on the Agency's financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows . The Agency is not able to reliably estimate the length or severity of this 
outbreak and the related financial impact. 

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

The Agency has issued bonds that provide mortgage loan financing for newly 
constructed or rehabilitated multifamily rental housing development in the 
District. No individual conduit multifamily project's assets are available to 
collateralize other project's debt obligations. Neither the faith and credit of the 
Agency nor the assets of any other Fund have been pledged as security for these 
bonds. The developments financed are pledged as collateral, aod the bonds are 
payable solely from payments received from the mortgages on the underlying 
promissory notes. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the bonds have an 
aggregate outstanding principal amount payable of $1,553,419,333 and 
$1,532,378,518, respectively. 
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NOTE 16: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - CONTINUED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The events that occur after the date of the Statement of Net Position but before the 
fmanc ial statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition 
or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about 
conditions that existed at the date of the Statement of Net Position are recognized 
in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide 
evidence about conditions that existed after the date of the Statement of Net 
Position require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management evaluated the 
activity of DCHF A through December 29, 2022 (the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued) and concluded that no subsequent events have 
occurred that would require recognition in the Financial Statements or disclosure 
in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
COMBINING ST ATE.MENTS OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2021) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Un restricted current assets: 
Cash aud cash equivalents s 
Investments 
Other receivables 
Ac.cn.ied interest receivable 
Prepaid foes 

T ota.l unrestricted curre.nt assets 
Restricted current assets: 
Cash and cash equivaferus 
Investments 
AccouulS receivable - HPAP Program 
Mortgage-backe.d securities at fa ir value 
McKinney Act loans receivable. nc1 
Accmed interest rec.eivable 

TOh\l restricted cum:n1 ~els 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Unrestricted non-current assets: 
lm•estments 
Mortgage and constn1ction loans receivable. neL 
Due from (to) other funds 

Total unreslricled non-curreul assets 
Restricted non-current assets: 
lnvestments held in lrtJSl 

Investments in joinl ventures 
Mor1gage-baded Set:t.iritics at fair value 
Mong.age and constmction loans receivable, net 
Loans receivable 

Tota.I restricted non-cutTent assets 
Capital ~ssets: 
Land 

Property and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

To1al capital assets, net 
TOTAL.NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL. ASSETS $ 

G~ocraJ Sioglc Family 
Fund Program Fund 

38,181.423 s 
15,165,142 
3,312,419 

567,220 
212.990 

57,439,194 

15,6$9,750 $,919,567 

2,892,860 

1,585,808 
250,962 

20.168.418 9.170,529 
77,607,612 9,170,529 

51.993,809 
6,078,723 
2.219.716 {2.050.644) 

60,292.248 (2,050,644) 

10.000,000 
1,345,435 
4.766,179 7.623,560 

415,000 
1.724,282 
7,835,896 1 $,038,5(,0 

573,000 
6,586,553 

(4,854,503) 
2.305.050 

70.433,194 15,987,916 
148,040,806 s 25,158,445 

(Continued) 
51 

Multifanlil:y 
Program Fund 

s 

33,027,153 
11,035,000 

621,871 
44.684.024 
44,684,024 

(169.072) 
(169,072) 

130,828,738 

196,381,048 

327,209,786 

327,040,714 
s 371,724,738 

2022 

s 38,181 ,423 
15,165, 142 
3,312.419 

567,220 
212,990 

57,439,194 

57,636,470 
11,035,000 
2,892,860 

1,585,808 
872,833 

74.022.971 
131,462,165 

51,993,809 
6,078,723 

58,072,532 

I 40.828, 738 
1,345,435 

12.389.739 
196, 796,048 

1,724,282 
353,084,242 

573,000 
6,586,553 

(4,854,503) 
2 305.050 

413,461,824 
s 544,923,989 

2021. as restatt(I 

$ 32,358,729 
15,782,837 
3.513.564 

669,159 
302.966 

52,627,255 

38,688,266 
74,4 15.000 

1,518,107 
10,262 

3,779.o76 
548,139 

118,958,850 
171,586,105 

46.234.552 
4,949,448 

51,)84,000 

141.547,990 
981,668 

17.555.564 
202,632,697 

1,822,769 
364,540,688 

573,000 
7,114.734 

(5,293,843! 
2.393 891 

418,118,579 
s 589,704.684 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
COMBINING ST A TEMENTS OF NET POSITION - (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2021) 

Gcocral Single Family Multifamily 
LIA81Lff1£S AND N£T POSITION Fund Program Fund Program Fund 2022 2021. as restated 

CURRENT LIA BILITJES 
Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets: 
Accounts payable and accn,ed liabilities $ 242,992 $ $ $ 242,992 $ 1,8 17,683 
Accrued salary and vacation payable 558,674 558,674 608,591 
Lease liability 36.940 36,940 36,940 
Prepaid fees 5.460.680 5.460,680 3,336. 106 

To tal cuffent liabil ities payable from unrestricted assets 6,299,286 6,299,286 5,799,320 
C urrent liabilit1cs payable from rest ricted assets: 
Accoums payable and accrued liabilities 40,095 65, 109 105,204 I 83,325 
Project fonds held for borrower and otl1er liabilities 4,927,653 1,100.773 86,229,308 92,257,734 144,513,454 
Interest payable 13,388 824,842 838,230 628,655 
Cun-cnt portion of loans payable 2 ,780,425 2,780,425 2,582,887 
Cun-cm portion of bonds payable 1,932,930 1,932,930 1,489,325 

Total current liabiUlies payable from restricted assets 7 708 078 1,1541!56 89,052.189 97,914.523 149~97.646 
Total current liabilities 14,007,364 1,154,256 89,052,189 104,213,809 155,196,266 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Non~c.urrent liabilities payable. from unrestricted assets: 
Lease liabi lity 118,885 118,885 155,825 

Total non-current liabi lities payable from unrestricted assets 118.885 118.885 155,825 
Non-current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Bonds payable • less cunent portion 575,000 275,493,929 276,068,929 278,794,370 

T Ohll non~c.urrent liabilities payable from restricted assets 575,000 275,493,929 276,068,929 278,794 ,370 
Total non-current liabilities 118,885 575,000 275,493,929 276,187,814 278,950,195 

TOTAL LIA6ILI TIES 14,126,249 1,729,256 364t546. l 18 380,401.623 434,147,161 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 2, 149,225 2,149,225 2,201,126 
Restriclcd for: 
Bond fund, collateral and Risk Share Program 23,429, 189 7. 178,620 30,607,809 28,730,761 
McKinney Acl Fund 9,624,933 9,624,933 9,156,761 

Total restric ted net position 9,624,933 23,429, 189 7, 178,620 40,232,742 37,887,522 

Unrestricted net posilion 122, 140,399 122,140,399 115,468,875 
TOTAL NET POSITION 133,914.557 23,429,189 71 l 78.620 164,522.366 1551557.523 

TOTAL LIAOJLJTJ £S AND N£T POSITION s 148,040,806 $ 25,158,445 s 371 ,724,738 s 544,923,989 $ 589,704,684 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

OPERATING REVENUES 
l1lveslment interest inconle 
Morlgage-backed secw·ity inlerest income 
Interest on 1'h0ngage and construclion loans 
Construction and dcvclopmcnl admin fees 
Financing fee income 
Bond udministrntion fee income 
McKinney Act interest re,•enue 
Ap-plic~tion and comm.itmcnl fees 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
General and administrative 
Personnel and rch11cd cos1s 
lnlerest expe-nse 
Depredation and amortization 
Trustee fees and other expenses 

Tomi operating expenses 
OPERATING INCOME 

NON-OPERA TING REVENUES/(EXPENSES) 
Federal a.nd city programs: 

Progrnm revenue 
Progra,n expenses 

Decrease in foir value of mortgage-b3ckcd 
securities and invesunems 

Total non-operating revent1cs/(expcnsc-s) 

Tnmsfors of funds, ne1 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
Net position. beginning of year 
Net position, end of year 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2021) 

General SingJe family S ingle Family 
Fund Proj!ram f'und NlllP Fund 

$ 1,279,014 $ 679,808 $ 
164.084 405,873 

2,275.851 
5,845,154 
7.244.236 

295,733 
263,660 

6,379,127 
23,746,859 1.085.681 

3,531,278 2,574 
7.172.594 

75,482 
336,970 

3 475 1.255 
11,044,317 85.311 
12.702.542 1,000,370 

8,125.894 
(8,125,894) 

(5,625,294) (1,117,559) 
!5,625.294) (1.117.559! 

10,547 750.504 (761.0SQ 

7.087,795 633,315 (761.0S l) 
126,826.762 22 795 874 761 051 

s 133,914,557 $ 23,429,189 $ 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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M ultifamily 

Program Fund 2022 

$ 431,469 s 2,390,291 
569,957 

5,226,898 5,226,898 
2,275,851 
5,845,154 

126.148 7,370,384 
295,733 
263,660 

5,203,638 11,582,765 
10,988.153 35,820.693 

1,003,901 4,537,753 
7.172.594 

7,846,520 7,922,002 
336,970 

18.313 29,043 
8,868,734 19.998,362 
2.119,419 15,822,33 1 

8,125,894 
(8,125,894) 

( 114,635) (6,857,488) 
! • 14,635! !6,857.488) 

2,004.784 8,964.843 
5.1 73 836 155 557 523 

$ 7,178,620 s 164,522,3(,6 

'2021, as restated 

$ 2,5 18,369 
708.774 

5,135,051 
3.103.655 
4,721,625 
6,357,252 

308,979 
136,797 

10,421,010 
33.411.512 

6,082,957 
5,970,199 
6,5 19,759 

392,272 
90.668 

19,055,855 
14.355,657 

9.369.420 
(9,369,420) 

(1,152,971) 
(I, 152.971) 

13.202,686 
142.354 837 

$ 155,557,523 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
(WJTH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2021) 

G t ntral Single f'amily Sing le Fnmlly 
Fund Pros:,ram Fund !'\IBP Fund 

Cash Flows from Opuatini;: Activities: 
Interest received on loans $ 295.733 $ $ 
Administrative and fina ncing cash receipts 15, 365,24 1 
Other c;:ish receipts 14.953.634 
Payments to vendors (9,432.592) (2.575) (4 .376) 
Paymcms t·o employees (7,222.5 1 I) 
Net mortgage and construction loans principal rt'CCipL.; / (dis.burscmcnts) 1, 162,480 
Principal and i1lterest received oil rno11g.age 0 b::icked securities (3,342 ,036) 228.4-05 2,243.260 
Payment for the purchase ofmortgagc•b.ickcd securities 
Othec cash payments (3.475) (7.255) 
Net ca5h provided hy (u!lcd in) 01>crating activities l l .776 .4 74 218.575 2,238,884 

Cash Flow~ from Capital and Related Financing Activitie!I 
Acquisition of capital asse1:, (248, 147) 
Principal payments on k.asc from operations p6.940! 
NN ta.Sh us<'d in ca1>ilal and n•IQt('d linantint: Qtth·itics (285,087) 

Cas h Flow, from Non-CaJJital Fim1ncin,:: A1.·th·iti1.•s 
lntc~t paid on bon~ and loans (76,650) ( 19,837) 
Transfor from (to) ocher funds 23. 13 1 815.082 (825,629) 
Proceed$ from bond issuances and loani, 7,073,776 
Principal payments on issued debt and loons (6,876.238) CI 10.00-0) (2,390.000) 
Bond premium 
Net cash 1>rovlded by (ust'd in) non-e~pirnl finanting ntlivllits 220.669 628.432 (3,235.466! 

Ca.sh Flows from Jn,•1.•stins: Activities 
Investment in joint ventures (363,767) 
lmerest received on invest,nents 1,279,0 14 679.808 
Maturities and sales o f' invcstmcnts 18.74 1,658 
P-uTChase of i,,ve:,lments !23,883.220) 
Net cash (used In) provided l>y Investing actlvlries (4,226,3 15) 679.R0S 

NET I NCR.EASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEKTS 7.485.741 1.526.8 15 (996,582) 
C.ash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 46,385.432 7,392.752 996.582 
Cash and cash equivalents. end of'ycsr $ 53,871, 173 $ 8,919,567 $ 

Ca.sh. u .sh tquiv11l('nls and r t strkted u .sh 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,18 1.423 $ $ 
Rcs1ricwd ca...-.h rmd cash oquivalcnts 15.689,750 8.919.567 

Total cash. cash equivalents and 1-esirfotcd cash $ 53,871,173 $ 8.919,567 $ 

Non-cash capital and related financing activities 
Lease Activity• Purchase of capital assets through lease 
Net non-cash provided by capirnl and r~lau:d linaucing activities 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
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M ultifamily 
Pro&ram Fund 

s 4,877.705 
126,148 

(48,410.643) 
(2,662,348) 

5,836,649 

118.313) 
!4-0,250,802) 

(7.615.940) 
(12,584) 

40.670.000 
(40,497,394) 

45 558 
(7,410.360! 

43 1,469 
l 7 l,<>98.609 

(107.713.992) 
(>4,4 16.086 

16,754,924 
16,272.229 

s 33,027,153 

s 
33,027.153 

s 33.027,153 

2022 2021 . as restated 

s 5 ,173.438 $ 6.013,630 
15,491.3M9 14.1~2.532 

(33.457.009) 58.731,459 
( l 2. l01 ,M91) (14,692,909) 

(7.222.511} (6.073.026) 
6,999,129 (33.540,847) 
(870.371) 29,2 14,764 

(30,8 I 9,770) 
(29.043) (90,668) 

126,0 16,869! 22.9 25. 165 

(Z48.147) (23.883) 
(36,940! !12,849 ) 

(285.087) (36.732) 

(7, 7 12,427) (6. 760.307) 

47, 743.77(, 99.(,62.6 17 
(49,873.632) (16,377.52 1) 

45.558 
!9,796.725) 76.524,789 

(363.767) (96, 136) 
2.390.291 2 .518,369 

190 .440.2(,7 22.(,23.379 
(13 1,597,212! C 128.005,604! 

60.869.579 (102,959.992) 

24.770.898 (3.546.770) 
71,046,995 74.593,765 

s 95,8 17,893 $ 71,046.995 

s 38,18 1,423 $ 32,358.729 
57.636.470 38.688.266 

s 95.8 17.893 $ 71.046,995 

s $ 205,6 14 
s $ 205,6 14 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
COMBINING ST A TEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

Reconciliation of Operating Income 10 Net Cash 
Provided by (used in) Operating Activities 
Operating income (loss) 
Depreciation and amortization 
Gain on disposal of assets 
Amortization of prepaid items, premiums and discounts on debt 
Interest on bonds/loans 
Provision for uncollectibie interest revenue 
Decrease (increase) in mortgage and construction loans 
Decrease (increase) in mortgage-backed securities 
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities 
Interest received on investments 
Decrease (increase) in assets: 

Accrued interest receivable 
Other current assets 
Other receivables 

(Decrease) increase in liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Prepaid items 
Project fund~ held for borrower and other liabilities 
Accn,ed interest payable 

Net cash pro,,Jded by (used in) operating activities 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
(WJTH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2021) 

General Single Family Single Family 
Fund Program Fund NIBP Fund 

$ 12,702,542 s 1,000,370 s 
336,970 

18 

76,650 19,837 
31,339 

I, 162,480 
(3,608,059) ( I 93,683) 2,234,976 

(1,279,014) (679,808) 

70,600 16.215 8,284 
89,976 

(1 , 173,608) 

(39,905) (1) (4,376) 
2, 124,574 
1,358,561 

(1, 168) (19,837) 
$ 11,776,474 $ 218.575 $ 2,238,884 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
55 

Multifamily 
Proi:ram Fund 

$ 2,i 19,419 

7,615,940 

5,836,649 

(431,469) 

(349, I 93) 

(1,658,447) 

(53,614,28 I) 
230,580 

$ (40,250,802) 

2022 2021, as restated 

$ 15,822,33 I $ 14,355,657 
336,970 392,272 

18 
235,908 

7,712,427 6.571,8 10 
31,339 31,339 

6,999, 129 (33,540,847) 
(1,566,766) 28,747,759 

(30,819,770) 
(2,390,29 I) {2,518,369) 

(254,094) 296,492 
89,976 (187,2 i3) 

(1,173,608) (1,124,232) 

(1 ,702,729) 1,304,872 
2,124.574 (461 ,018) 

(52,255,720) 39,928,464 
209,575 (287,959) 

$ (26,0 I 6,869) $ 22,925, 165 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACK.ED SECURITIES BY FUND 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1288 Collateralized Single Fam ilv i\fortgage Revenue .Bonds as of Se11temher 30, 2022 

Asset Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Money Market Funds $ 8,919,567 $ 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,919,567 

rnvestment.s 

Investment Agreements 10,000,000 
Total Investments 10,000,000 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mae 2,477,478 
Fannie Mae 1,927,10 1 
Freddie Mac 3,339, 164 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securities 7,743,743 

1988 Collateralized Single Family 
Mortgage Revenue Bonds Total 
Cash and lm•estments s 26,663,310 s 

Fair Value 

8,919,567 
8,919,567 

10,000,000 
10,000,000 

2,380,458 
1,886,975 
3,356, 127 
7,623,560 

26,543,127 

$ 

$ 

Less than I 

8,919,567 
8,919,567 

8,919,567 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (io ~cars) 

From I UpTo5 From 5 Up To 10 

$ $ 

10,000,000 
10,000,000 

438,87 1 532,304 
32,1 10 

470,98 1 532,304 

$ 10,470,981 $ 532,304 

From JO Up To 
15 15 and More. 

$ $ 

1,409,283 
1,566,414 288,45 1 
1,014,986 2,34 I, 141 
2,58 1,400 4,038,875 

$ 2,581,400 $ 4,038,875 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1988 Collateralized Single Family Mortgage .Revenue Bonds as of Se111ember 30, 2021 

Asset Cost 

Cash and Cash Egui valents 

Money Markee Funds $ 4,77 1,765 $ 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,77 1,765 

Investments 

Investment Agreements 10,000 000 
Total Jnveslmenls 10,000 000 

I 988 Collaterali:red Single Family 
Mortgage .Reve.nue Bonds Total 
Cash and Investments s 14,771,765 $ 

Fair Value 

4,771,765 $ 
4,771,765 

10,000.000 
IO 000.000 

14,771 ,765 s 

Less than I 

4,77 1,765 
4,77 1,765 

4,771,765 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (in years) 

From I Up To S From S Up To lO 

$ $ 

10 000 000 
10 000 000 

$ 10,000,000 $ 

From 10 Up To 
IS IS and More 

$ $ 

s $ 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1996 Single Fa mill' Mortgage Revenue Bonds as of Se(ltemher 30, 2021 

Asset Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Money Markel Funds $ 2,620,987 $ 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,620,987 

:r,..1or1aaae-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mae 1,283,008 
Fannie Mae 2,281,116 
Freddie Mac 4,105,584 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securities 7,669,708 

1996 Single Fa mil)' Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds Total Cas b and 
Mortgage-Backed Securities $ 10,290,695 s 

Fair Value 

2,620,987 
2,620,987 

1,413,555 
2,501,058 
4,632,823 
8,547,436 

11,168,423 

$ 

s 

Less than I 

2,620,987 
2,620,987 

10,262 

10,262 

2,631,249 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (in years) 

From I Up To 5 From 5 Up To 10 

$ $ 

588,127 305,707 
46,684 

634,811 305,707 

s 634,811 s 305,707 

From 10 Up To 
15 15 and More 

$ $ 

509,459 
886,379 1,567,995 

4,632,823 
1,395,838 6,200,818 

s 1,395,838 s 6,200,818 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Single Familv NIB Program as of Se11tember 30. 2021 

Asset Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Money Market Funds $ 996,582 $ 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 996,582 

Mongage-Backe.d Securities 

Ginnie Mac 1,903.367 
Fannie Mac 188.753 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securities 2,092,120 

Single family NIB Program Total 
Cash and Mortgage-Backed 
Securities $ 3,088,702 $ 

Fair Value 

996,582 
996,582 

2,032,782 
202 194 

2 234.976 

3,231,558 

s 

s 

Less than 1 

996,582 
996,582 

996,582 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (in wars) 

From I UpToS F rom 5 Up To 10 

$ $ 

$ $ 

From 10 Up To 
15 15 and More 

s $ 

2,032,782 
202,194 

2,234,976 

s $ 2,234,976 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Multifamill' Develo11ment Program (MFDP) as ofSe11cember 30, 2022 

Asset Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits s 3 $ 
Demand Money Market Deposits 3,459,985 
Money M.arket Funds 27,832,041 

Total Cash and Cash Equiva lents 31,292,029 

Investments 

Certificate of Deposit 3,335,000 
Investment Agreements 137,865,562 
GSE Obligations 689,822 

Total Investments 141,890,384 

Multifamily MFDP Program Total 
Cash and Investments $ 173,182,413 $ 

Fair Value 

3 
3.459,985 

27,832,041 
31,292,029 

3,335,000 
137,865,562 

663,176 
141 ,863,738 

173,155,767 

$ 

s 

Less than 1 

3 
3,459,985 

27,832.041 
31,292,029 

3.335,000 
7,700,000 

11 ,035,000 

42,327,029 

(Continued) 
60 

Maturities (In years) 

From 1 Up To 5 From 5 Up To 10 

$ $ 

130,165,562 
663,176 

130, 165,562 663, 176 

$ 130, I 651562 s 663,) 76 

From 10 Up To 
15 15 and More 

s $ 

$ $ 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Multifamill' DevelOJ!ment Program jMFDP} as of Se)!tember 30, 202 1 

Asset Cost Fair Valur 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Demand Money Market Deposits $ 3.458.326 $ 3,458.326 
Money Market Funds 11,089,870 11,089,870 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,548,196 14,548,196 

Jnveshnents 

Certificate of Deposit 12.525,00-0 12.525,000 
Investment Agreements I 92.660,00-0 192,660,000 
GSE Obligations 690,525 777,990 

Total Investments 205,875,525 205,962,990 

Multifamily MFOP Program Total 
Cush and Investments $ 220,423,72 t $ 220,511,186 

$ 

$ 

Less than I 

3,458,326 
11,089,870 
14,548,196 

74,415,000 

74,415,000 

88,963, 196 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (in years) 

From t Up To 5 From 5 Up To JO 

$ $ 

12,525,000 
118,245,000 

777,990 
I 30,770,000 777,990 

$ 130,770,000 $ 777,990 

From 10 Up To 
15 15 and More 

$ $ 

$ $ 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Multifamll~ Program as of Se11temher 30, 2022 

Asset Cosl 

Ca.~h and Ca.~h Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Dcposiis $ 12 $ 
Demand Money Market Oeposils I ,483.6 I 5 
Money Markel Funds 251,497 

Total (',ash and Cash Equivalcnls 1,735,124 

Multifamily Program Total Cash s 1,735,124 $ 

Fair Value 

12 s 
1.483,6 I 5 

25 1,497 
1,735,124 

1,735,124 s 

Less tbao l 

2 
1,483,615 

251.497 
1,735,11 4 

1,735,1 14 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (in rears) 

From l Up To 5 From 5 Up To 10 

$ $ 

s $ 

From 10 Up To 
15 15 and More 

s $ 10 

10 

$ s IO 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Multlfamilv Program as of Se11tember 30, 202 1 

Asset Cost Fair Value 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits $ $ 

Demand Money Market Deposits 1,483,595 1.483,595 
Money Market Funds 240,437 240,437 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,724,033 1.724,033 

Multifamily Program Total Cash $ 1,724,033 $ 1,724,033 

s 

s 

Less than I 

1,483,595 
240,437 

1,724,033 

1,724,033 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (in years) 

From 1 Up To 5 From 5 Up To 10 

$ $ 

$ 

From 10 Up To 
15 15 and More 

s $ 

s $ 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Combined Revenue Obligation Funds and General Fund as of Se(!tember 30, 2022 

Asset Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits $ 15 $ 

Demand Money Market Deposits 4,943,600 
Money Market Funds 37,003, 105 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 41,946,720 

lnvesm1ents 

Certificates of Deposits 3,335,000 
Investment Agreements 147,865,562 
GSE Obligations 689,822 

Total Investments 15 1,890,384 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mae 2,477,478 
Fannie Mae 1,927, 101 
Freddie Mac 3,339, 164 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securities 7,743,743 

Combined General Fund and 
Revenue Obligation Funds Total 
Cash, lm•estments and Mortgage-
Backed Securities $ 20J ,580,847 $ 

Fair Value 

15 
4,943,600 

37,003.105 
41 ,946,720 

3,335,000 
147,865,562 

663,176 
15 1,863,738 

2,380,458 
1,886,975 
3,356,127 
7.623,560 

201,434,018 

$ 

s 

Lt.>ss tha n J 

5 
4,943,600 

37,003,105 
41 ,946,710 

3.335,000 
7,700,000 

11,035,000 

S2,981,710 

(Continued) 
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Maturities (in vears) 

From 1 Up To S From S Up To JO 

$ s 

140,165,562 
663,176 

140,165,562 663,176 

438,871 532,304 
32, 110 

470,981 532,304 

$ J40,636,S43 $ 1,195,480 

From 10 Up To 
IS JS and More 

$ $ 10 

10 

1,409,283 
1,566.4 14 288,451 
1,014,986 2,341,141 
2,58 1.400 4,038,875 

s 2,SSl,400 $ 4,038,SSS 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Combined Revenue O bligation F unds and General Fund as of Sel!lember 30, 2021 

Asset Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits s 5,9 18.706 $ 
Demand Money Market Deposits 45,408.648 
Money Market Funds 19,7 19,641 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 71,046,995 

Investments 

Cenificates of Deposits 16,634.396 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 7,676,6 10 
Municipal Obligations 5,315,296 
Investment Agreements 202,660,000 
Corpornte Obligations 41.437,516 
GSE Obligations 4,283.584 

Total InvestmenL~ 278,007,402 

Mongage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mae 4,046,703 
Fannie Mac 3,486,279 
Freddie Mac 8,874,347 

Total Mongage-Backed Securities 16,407,329 

Combined General Fund and 
Revenue Obligation Funds Total 
Cash, l n,•estments and Mortgage-
Backed Securities $ 365,461,726 s 

Fair Value 

5,918,706 $ 

45,408,648 
19,719,641 
7 1,046,995 

16,634,396 
7,656,0 12 
5,320,576 

202,660,000 
41 ,342,292 
4.367,103 

277,980,379 

4,360,355 
3,780,766 
9.424.705 

17,565,826 

366,593,200 $ 

Less than I 

5,918,706 
45,408,648 
19,719,641 
71 ,046,995 

3,086,362 
126,475 
905,762 

74.415,000 
11 ,664.238 

90,197,837 

10.262 

10,262 

161,255,094 

(Continued) 
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Maturities !in years~ 

From l Up To 5 From 5 Up To 10 

$ $ 

13,548,034 
7,365,991 163,546 
4,414,814 

128,245,000 
28,299,300 1,378,754 
3,492,165 874,938 

185,365,304 2,4 17,238 

588, 127 305,707 
46,684 

634,811 305,707 

$ 186,000,115 $ 2,722,945 

From 10 Up To 
JS JS and More 

$ $ 

509,458 2,946,801 
886,379 2.847,703 

9,424,705 
1,395,837 15,219,209 

s 1,395,837 s 15,219,209 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1988 Collaterall1.ed Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds as of September 30, 2022 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Money Market Funds 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Investment Agreements 
Total investments 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mac 
Fannie Mac 
Freddie Mac 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securities 

I 988 Collateralized Single Family 
)'fortgage Revenue Bonds Total Cash, 
lm·estments and Mortgage-Backed 

$ 

Fair Value 

8.919.567 
8,9 19,567 

10.000.000 
10.000.000 

2,380.458 
1,886,975 
3.356. 127 
7.623 560 

Securities $ 26,543,127 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments Credit Rating 

33.6% 
33.6% 

37.7% 
37.7% 

9.0% 
7.1% 

12.6% 
28.7% 

100.0% 

(Continued) 
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Aaa-mf 

Aa2 

Aaa 
Aaa 
Aaa 

Rating Agency 

Moody's 

Moody's 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Underlying Securities Credit 
Rating / Supporting Collateral 

Uneollateralizcd. Uninsured 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1988 Collateralized Single familv Mortgage R evenue Bonds as of September 30. 2021 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Money Market Funds 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Investment Agreements 
Total Investments 

1988 Collateralized Single Family 
Mortgage Revenue Bonds Total Cash, 
Investments and Mortgage-Backed 

Fair Value 

$ 4,771.765 
4,771,765 

10,000,000 
10,000,000 

Securities $ 14,771,765 
========== 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments 

32.3% 
32.3% 

67.7% 
67.7% 

100.0% 

Credit Rating 

Aaa-mf 

Aa2 

(Continued) 
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Rating Agency 

Moody's 

Moody's 

Underly"ing Securities Credit 
Rating / S upporting Collateral 

Uncollateralized, Uninsured 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

1996 Single Familv Mortgage Revenue Bonds as of September 30, 202 1 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Money Market Funds 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mae 
Fannie Mae 
Freddie Mac 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securities 

I 996 Single Family Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds Total Cash, 
Investments and Mortgage-Backed 
Securities 

$ 

$ 

Fair Value 

2,620,987 
2,620 987 

1,4 I 3,555 
2,501 ,058 
4,632,823 
8,547,436 

11,168,423 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments Credit Rating 

23.5% 
23.5% 

12.7% 

22.4% 
41.4% 
76.5% 

100.0% 

(Continued) 
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Aaa-mf 

Aaa 
Aaa 
Aaa 

Rating Agency 

Moody's 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Uodcrlying Sccuritic~ Credit 
Rating / Supporting Collateral 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Single .Familv NIB Progra m as of September 30, 2021 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Money Market Funds 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mae 
Fannie Mae 

Total Mortgage-Backed Secu1ities 

Single Family NIB Program Total 
Cash and Mortgage-Backed 
Securities 

$ 

$ 

Fair Value 

996,582 
996,582 

2,032,782 
202,194 

2,234,976 

3,231,558 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments Credit Rating 

30.8% 
30.8% 

62.9% 
6.3% 

69.2% 

100.0% 

(Continued) 
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Aaa-mf 

Aaa 
Aaa 

Rating Agency 

Moody's 

Moody's 
Moody's 

Underlying Securities Credit 
Rating/ Supporting Collateral 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Multifamilv Development Program (MFDPl as of September 30, 2022 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits 
Demand Money Market Deposits 
Money Market Funds 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Certificate of Deposit 
Investment Agreements 
Investment Agreements 
Investment Agreements 
GSE Obligations 

Total Investments 

Multifamily MFOP Progn,m Tot.al 
Cash and Investments 

Fair Value 

$ 3 
3,459,985 

27,832.041 
3 1,292,029 

3,335,000 
45,040,562 
54,475,000 
38,350,000 

663,176 
141 ,863,738 

$ 173,155,767 

Percentage of 
T otal 

1 r:w estments 

0.0% 
2.0% 

16.1% 
18.1% 

1.9% 
26.0% 
31.5% 
22.1% 

0.4% 
81.9% 

100.0% 

Credit Rating 

Not Rated 
P-1 

Aaa-mf 

Not Rated 
Aa2 
/\a3 
A l 
Aaa 

(Continued) 
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Rating Agency 

Moody's 
Moody's 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Underlying Securities Credit 
Rating/ Supporting Collateral 

Uncollateralized, Uninsured 

Federal Reserve-Held Aaa Collateral 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Multifamily Development Program (MFDP) as of September 30, 2021 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Demand Money Market Deposits 
Money Market Funds 

Tota l Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Certificate of Deposit 
Investment Agreements 
Investment Agreements 
Investment Agreements 
GSE Obligations 

Tota l Investments 

Multifamily MFDP Program Total 
Cash and Investments 

$ 

Fair Value 

3,458,326 
I 1.089,870 
14,548,196 

12,525,000 
99,835,000 
54,475,000 
38,350,000 

777 990 
205,962,990 

$ 220,511,186 

Percentage of 
T otal 

Invest ments Credit Rating 

1.6% 
5.0% 
6.6% 

P-1 
Aaa-mf 

5.7% Not Rated 
45.2% 
24.7% 
17.4% 
0.4% 

93.4% 

100.0% 

(Continued) 
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Aa2 
Aa3 
Al 
Aaa 

Rating Agencv 

Moody's 
Moody 's 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Underlying Securities Credit 
Rating / Supporting Collateral 

Federal Reserve-Held Aaa Collateral 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Multifamily Program as of September 30, 2022 

Asset Fair Value 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments Credit Rating Rating Agency 
Underlying Securities Credit 

Rating / Supporting Collateral 

Non-Money Market Deposils 
Demand Money Market Deposits 
Money Market Funds 

12 
1,483,615 

251,497 

0.0% 
85.5% 
14.5% 

Not Rated 
P-1 

Aaa-mf 

Uncollateralizcd, Uninsured 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Multifamily Program Total Cash and 
Investments 

1,735,124 

s 1,735,124 

100.0% 

100.0% 

(Continued) 
72 

Moody's 
Moody's 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Mult ifamilv Program as of September 30. 2021 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits 
Demand Money Market Deposits 
Money Market Funds 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Multifamily Program Total Cash and 
Investments 

Fair Value 

$ 

1,483,595 
240,437 

1,724,033 

$ l ,724,033 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments 

0.0% 
86.1% 
13.9% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

Credit Rating 

Not Rated 
P-1 

Aaa-mf 

(Continued) 
73 

Rating Agency 

Moody's 
Moody's 

Under lying Securities Credit 
Rating/ Support ing Collateral 

Uncollateralized. Uninsured 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Combined Revenue Obligation Funds and General Fund as of September 30. 2022 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits 
Demand Money Market Deposits 
Money Market Funds 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Certificates of Deposits 
luvestmenl Agreements 
Investment Agreements 
luvestment Agreements 
GSE Obligations 

Total Investments 

$ 

Fair Value 

15 
4,943,600 

37,003,105 
41,946,720 

3,335,000 
55,040,562 
54,475,000 
38,350,000 

663,176 
15 1,863,738 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments Credit Rating 

0.0% 
2.5% 

18.4% 
20.9% 

1.7% 
27.3% 
27.0% 
19.0% 
0.3% 

75.3% 

(Continued) 
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Not Rated 
P-1 

Aaa-mf 

Not Rated 
Aa2 
Aa3 
Al 
Aaa 

Rating Agency 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Uoderlying Securities Credit 
Rating/ Supporting Collateral 

Uneollateralized, Uninsured 

Federal Reserve-Held Aaa Collateral 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Combined Revenue Obligation Funds and General Fund as of September 30, 2022 

Asset 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mae 
Fannie Mae 
Freddie Mac 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securit ies 

Combined General Fund and 
Revenue Obligation Fonds Total 
Cash, Investments and Mortgage­
Backed Securities 

Fair Value 

2,380,458 
1,886,975 
3,356, 127 
7,623,560 

$ 201,434,018 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments Credit Rating 

1.2% 
0.9% 
1.7% 
3.8% 

100.0% 

(Continued) 
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Aaa 
Aaa 
Aaa 

Rating Agency 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Underlying Securities Credit 
Rating / Supporting Collateral 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Combined Revenue Obligation Funds and General Fund as of September 30, 2021 

Asset 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Non-Money Market Deposits 
Non-Money Market Deposits 
Demand Money Market Deposits 
Demand Money Market Deposits 
Money Market Funds 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Certificates ofDe1>osits 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 
Municipal Obligations 
Municipal Obligations 
J nvestment Agreements 
Investment Agreements 
Investment Agreements 
Corporate Obligations 
Corporate Obligations 
Corporate Obligations 
Corporate Obligations 
Corporate Obligations 
Corporate Obligations 
Corporate Obligations 
Corporate Obligations 
GSE Obligations 

Total Investments 

$ 

Fair Value 

5,918,705 
1 

37,955,680 
7,452,968 

I 9,719,641 
71,046,995 

16,634,396 
7,656,012 

837,831 
4,482,745 

109,835,000 
54,475,000 
38,350,000 

110,602 
145,991 
635,031 

4,338,323 
2,754,9 17 

20,542,402 
10,418 ,526 
2,396,500 
4,367,103 

277,980 379 

Percentage of 
Total 

Investments 

1.6% 
0 .0% 

10.4% 
2.0% 
5.4% 

19.4% 

4.5% 
2.1% 
0.2% 
1.2% 

29.9% 
14.9% 
10.5% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.2% 
1.2% 
0.8% 
5.6% 
2.8% 
0.7% 
l.2% 

75.8% 

Credit Rating 

Not Raled 
Not Rated 
Not Rated 

P- 1 
Aaa-mf 

Nol Rated 
Aaa 
Aal 
Aa2 
Aa2 
Aa2 
A l 
Aaa 
Aal 
Aa2 
Aa3 
A l 
A2 
A3 

Baa2 
Aaa 

(Continued) 
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Rating Agency 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 
Moody's 

Underlying Securities Credit 
Rating / Supporting Collateral 

Third Party-Held Aaa Collateral 
Uncollatcralizcd, Uninsured 
Federal Reserve-Held Aaa Collateral 

Federal Reserve-Held Aaa Collateral 



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY 
SCHEDULES OF CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND 

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES BY FUND (CONTINUED) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Combined Revenue Obligation Funds and General Fund as of September 30, 2021 

Asset 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Ginnie Mac 
Fannie Mae 
Freddie Mac 

Total Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Combined Genera l Fund and 
Revenue Obligation Funds Total 
Cash, Investments and Mortgage­
Backed Securities 

Fair Value 

4,360,355 
3,780,766 
9,424,705 

17,565,826 

$ 366,593,200 

Percentage of 
Total 

fnvestments 

1.2% 
1.0% 
2.6% 
4.8% 

100.0% 

Credit Rating Rating Agency 

Aaa Moody's 
Aaa Moody's 
Aaa Moody's 

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report. 
77 

Underlying Securities Credit 
Rating / Supporting Collateral 



CohnReinick LLP 
coh nreznlck.com 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 
District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
District of Columbia Housing Finance Agency (the "Agency"), a component unit of the 
Government of the District of Columbia, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealaiess is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, io internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether th.e Agency's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
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Cohn Reznick~ 

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Baltimore, Ma1yland 
December 29, 2022 

79 



 

 

 

To report fraud, waste, abuse, or mismanagement: 

 

(202) 724-TIPS (8477) and (800) 521-1639 

http://oig.dc.gov 

oig@dc.gov 

http://oig.dc.gov/
http://oig.dc.gov/
mailto:oig@dc.gov



